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DIRECTORS' REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

RESULTS

Group and Bank

RM'000

Profit before taxation 72,294      

Tax expense (18,245)    

Net profit for the year 54,049      

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

DIVIDENDS

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD

(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of The 

Bank of Nova Scotia Berhad (the "Bank") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") for the financial year 

ended 31 October 2014. 

The principal activities of the Bank are banking and related financial services, whilst the principal 

activities of the subsidiaries are stated in Note 10 to the financial statements.   

 

There has been no significant change in the nature of the principal activities during the financial 

year. 

 

The results of the Group and of the Bank for the financial year are:  

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under 

review except as disclosed in the financial statements. 

No dividend was paid during the financial year and the Directors do not recommend any dividend to 

be paid for the financial year. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS AND FINANCING

CURRENT ASSETS

VALUATION METHODS

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Bank were made out, the Directors took 

reasonable steps to ascertain that actions had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts 

and financing and the making of provisions for doubtful debts and financing, and satisfied 

themselves that all known bad debts and financing had been written off and adequate provisions 

made for doubtful debts and financing. 

 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the 

amount written off for bad debts and financing, or the amount of the provisions for doubtful debts 

and financing, in the financial statements of the Group and of the Bank inadequate to any substantial 

extent.      

 

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Bank were made out, the Directors took 

reasonable steps to ascertain that the value of any current assets, other than debts and financing, 

which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business, as shown in the accounting 

records of the Group and of the Bank, have been written down to an amount which they might be 

expected to realise. 

 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the 

values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Bank 

misleading. 

 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which 

would render adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities in the Group’s 

and the Bank’s financial statements misleading or inappropriate.         

 

At the date of this report, there does not exist: 

 

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Bank which has arisen since the end of the 

financial year and which secures the liabilities of any other person, or      

any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Bank that has arisen since the end of 

the financial year other than in the ordinary course of the banking business. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTD.)

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY 

2014 Results

No contingent liability or other liability of the Group and of the Bank has become enforceable, or is 

likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year 

which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of 

the Bank to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.             

 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt with 

in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Bank, that would render any amount 

stated in the financial statements misleading. 

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Bank for the 

financial year ended 31 October 2014 has not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or 

event of a material and unusual nature. 

 

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report 

any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors, 

to affect substantially the financial performance of the Group and of the Bank for the current 

financial year in which this report is made.                   

 

The Bank achieved a lower performance for the financial year ended 31 October 2014, with profit 

before tax (PBT) and the total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Bank dropping by 

3.08% and 4.10%, respectively. Earning per share (EPS) decreased by 4.35% to 44 sen. The decrease 

in net income after tax was mainly due to lower net interest income by RM4.71 million (5.26%) as a 

result of decrease in loans utilisation and matured loans from Corporate banking and competitive 

cost of fund quoted to customers to win deals, higher premiums paid to secure more customer 

deposits from Money Market. 

 

The fundings of the assets were mainly through holding company borrowings, interbank borrowings, 

deposits from customers and shareholders equity. During the year, the total assets of the Bank 

showed a decrease of 1.48% to RM 4.75 billion due to lower utilisation of loans and advances and 

also lower holding of cash and short-term funds. 

 

 

 



4

(Company No. 308035 U)

BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY (CONTD.)

Outlook for year 2015

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members Status of Directorship

Lodewijk Govaerts Non-Independent Executive Director

Theodoor Joseph Bark Independent Non-Executive Director

Murugiah M N Singham Independent Non-Executive Director

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

(appointed on 5 May 2014)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh Independent Non-Executive Director

(appointed on 5 May 2014)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat Independent Non-Executive Director

(retired on 15 April 2014)

Geh Cheng Hooi Independent Non-Executive Director

(retired on 15 April 2014)

Philip Victor Seymour Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

(resigned on 10 April 2014)

Claude David Morin Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

(resigned on 28 February 2014)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Board is chaired by Theodoor Joseph Bark. The Directors who served since the date of the last 

report are: 

Review and adopt long term and short term strategic plans for the Group and the Bank; 

Oversee the conduct of the Group and of the Bank’s business to evaluate whether the business is 

being properly managed; 

Identify and manage principal risks; and  

The objective of the Board is to plan, supervise, identify/manage risks and provide direction and 

guidance to the management of the Group and of the Bank to successfully achieve the Group and the 

Bank’s goal. Broad duties and responsibilities of the Board include: 

Malaysia’s economy is expected to expand between 4.5% and 5.5% in 2015 as the economic growth 

momentum continues from 2014, led by the private sector.  According to The Economic Report 

2014-2015, improving external demand and resilient domestic economic activity would underpin the 

growth amid concerns about the global economic growth. Investment in oil and gas was also 

expected to slow in 2015 amid declining global oil prices, while private consumption in Malaysia 

was expected to moderate as consumers adjust to higher prices when the goods and services tax 

kicks in in April 2015. 

 

The strategic thrust for the year 2015 would be to increase the revenue growth and loan base with 

conservative packaging of new loan assets booked; second, ensuring credit quality through stringent 

credit processes and continuous monitoring and finally, expense controls to consolidate the 

operations. 
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTD.)

(d)

BOARD COMMITTEES

ATTENDANCE

Lodewijk Govaerts 5 (5)

Theodoor Joseph Bark 5 (5)

Murugiah M N Singham 5 (5)

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014) 3 (3)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014) 2 (3)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014) 3 (3)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014) 2 (2)

KEY INFORMATION AND BACKGROUND OF DIRECTORS

(a) Lodewijk Govaerts

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank’s parent office; i.e. The Bank of Nova Scotia (BNS), the 

functions of both Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee are supplemented by advice 

and counsel from BNS consistently.  The Bank has a Technical Service Agreement with BNS, under 

which services are provided by BNS who has the international expertise and organisational staff 

support to provide these services.   
 
 

Identify and manage principal risks; and  

Review the adequacy and the integrity of the Group and of the Bank’s internal control systems 

and management information systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, 

regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.   

During the financial year the Directors attended the following number of meetings of the Board (the 

number of meetings held whilst they were Directors is shown in brackets): 

The Bank is led by an experienced Board from diverse backgrounds and collectively has a wide 

range of business and management experience, knowledge and capabilities in areas that include 

banking, financial services, accounting, economics and legal. 
 

Lodewijk Govaerts was appointed to the Board as a Non-Independent Executive Director on 20 

August 2013. He is currently the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") of the Bank and he has been 

with the group for 4 years holding various key capacities and roles including Director of Client 

Relationships, Director of Strategic Development.  Prior to joining BNS, he previously served in 

European banks and was holding various key roles in different countries, including CEO of ABN 

AMRO Indonesia, Asia Pacific Head of Credit Portfolio Management and Head of Corporate & 

International Banking, China. He holds a Dr/MBA, from Groningen School of Management & 

Organization, the Netherlands. 
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KEY INFORMATION AND BACKGROUND OF DIRECTORS (CONTD.)

(b) Theodoor Joseph Bark 

(c) Murugiah M N Singham 

(d) Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014)

(e) Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Murugiah was appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 May 2013. 

He has had a career spanning 38 years with investment banking and insurance institutions as well 

as the capital market regulator. Murugiah was Senior General Manager & Head of Supervision, 

Securities Commission Malaysia for three years. Prior to that, he was with AmInvestment Bank 

for 26 years where he held various positions including as Director, Group Compliance and 

General Manager, Corporate Finance. 

 

Murugiah is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Member of the 

Malaysian Institute of Accountants. 

Theodoor Joseph Bark was appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 

26 August 2013. He has over 51 years of experience in the banking industry. He held various 

senior positions in the ABN Amro Bank Group for the past 40 years.  He was previously 

appointed as Managing Director of ABN Amro Malaysia. He graduated with a degree in 

Business Administration. 

Noel Singh was appointed as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on 5 May 2014. He has 

over 30 years of experience in the finance field.  He is a Member of The Society of Management 

Accountants of Ontario, Canada.  

        

Noel Singh is currently the Senior Vice President, Corporate & Commercial Banking, Thanachart 

Bank PCL, overseeing the cash management, trade finance, product and process development for 

corporate and commercial banking. He is also a member of Thanachart Bank’s Senior Credit 

Committee. He is responsible for coordinating corporate banking client relationships between 

Thanachart Bank and The Scotiabank Group. 

 

Janis Bremner was appointed as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on 5 May 2014. 

Janis Bremner graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce,  Honours in Business Administration 

(Finance) from the University of Windsor, Ontario, Canada. 

 

She has over 24 years of experience in the banking industry. She is currently the Director & Head 

of Loans Syndications, Asia Pacific, where she is leading the syndicated lending activities of the 

Asia Pacific region and developing/implementing a strategy, active marketing to clients and 

banks to source transactions and market information.  

 

Janis Bremner is responsible for developing strategy for the bank to enter new markets. In this 

capacity, she succeeded in building an Australian portfolio from A$200 million to A$3.4 billion 

over a 6 year period and under challenging market conditions. 
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KEY INFORMATION AND BACKGROUND OF DIRECTORS (CONTD.)

(f) Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

(g) Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014)

(h) Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014)

(i) Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat was appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 

22 November 1994. He has over 30 years experience of legal services with Shook Lin & Bok and 

Mah-Kok & Din. He was also previously a Deputy Minister of Trade & Industry. He retired from 

Kok & Associates in 2000. He chaired the Environmental Quality Council from 2001 to 2009.  

Dato' Kok graduated with a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from the University of Singapore. 

Geh Cheng Hooi was appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 22 
November 1994. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
and was formerly a Senior Partner of KPMG. 
        

Mr. Philip Victor Seymour has been with The Bank of Nova Scotia group for over 15 years. 

During this period, he served in various capacities and roles including general administration, 

branch banking management, global banking and markets audit, global wealth management 

audit, Sarbanes Oxley Compliance program, mergers & acquisitions, corporate development, 

investment and BNS affiliates in China oversight. He has a good track record of holding key 

positions in the group and has exposure in different countries in the region from working in Hong 

Kong, China, Chile, Peru, Brazil, Colombia, Central America, the Caribbean, US, Ireland and 

Mexico.  

 

He is currently the Vice President for Corporate Development, Asia of The Bank of Nova Scotia. 

Through his various roles, Mr. Philip Victor Seymour has developed and possesses strong 

capabilities in the areas of risk management (market, credit and operational), operations, 

compliance and corporate governance. His vast international experience and leadership in the 

bank’s M&A activities, has helped him to develop a very strategic view and solid understanding 

of all areas of financial institution risk and appropriate mitigates. 

        

 

Dr. Veerinderjeet was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 5 May 2014. Dr. 

Veerinderjeet has had extensive experience in tax matters over 30 years both as an academic as 

well as at a professional level. His extensive experience covers consultancy work related to 

international tax and domestic tax issues involving both direct and indirect taxes.  

 

Dr. Veerinderjeet graduated from the University of Malaya with a first class honours degree in 

accountancy and obtained his Doctorate from Universiti Putra Malaysia. He is a member of the 

Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA), the Malaysian Institute of 

Accountants (MIA), the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia [(CTIM) formerly known as the 

Malaysian Institute of Taxation] as well as CPA Australia. 
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KEY INFORMATION AND BACKGROUND OF DIRECTORS (CONTD.)

(j) Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Membership and composition

The members of the Audit Committee are:-

Murugiah M N Singham - Chairman

Theodoor Joseph Bark 

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014)

Mr. Claude David Morin has been with The Bank of Nova Scotia group for over 35 years. During 

this period, he served in various capacities in general administration, credit and marketing loans, 

credit supervision, merchant banking, private banking, trust & investment services and 

treasury/trading risk oversight. He has good track record of holding key positions in the group 

and has exposure in different countries in the region from working in Hong Kong, Korea, 

Singapore and Philippines.  

 

Mr. Claude David Morin is currently the Senior Vice President, The Bank of Nova Scotia Asia 

Limited ("BNSAL") & Country Head Singapore.  Mr. Claude David Morin’s recently expanded 

mandate which saw the addition of Country Head, Singapore responsibilities to BNSAL 

portfolio, to address the increasing emphasis by regulators on sound governance and regulatory 

compliance and to ensure necessary oversight given the growing scope and complexity of 

business conducted by Singapore Branch and BNSAL.  A key member of the International 

Banking executive team in Asia Pacific, Mr. Claude David Morin has oversight and governance 

over all International Banking, Global Banking Markets and Global Transaction Banking 

activities conducted from BNSAL / BNS Singapore Branch and strong interface with Sydney 

Representative Office. 

 

The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors of The Bank of Nova Scotia 

Berhad and shall consist of not less than three members, none of whom shall be full-time executives 

of The Bank of Nova Scotia Berhad. The majority of the Audit Committee members shall be 

independent non-executive directors and the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman among them 

who is an independent non-executive director.  Alternate directors are not allowed to be appointed as 

members of the Audit Committee. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTD.)

Terms of Reference

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Number of meetings held

Murugiah M N Singham 5 (5)

Theodoor Joseph Bark 5 (5)

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014) 2 (3)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014) 3 (3)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014) 3 (3)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014) 2 (2)

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to review the financial conditions of The Bank of 

Nova Scotia Berhad, its internal controls, performance and findings of the internal auditors and to 

recommend appropriate action regularly, and to meet at least once every quarter each year. 

 

The primary functions of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board to:- 

The Audit Committee shall meet at least once every quarter and during the financial year 2014, the 

committee met five (5) times and the attendance of the members are as follows (the number of 

meetings held whilst they were members is shown in brackets):- 

 

Ensure that the financial statements are prepared in a timely and accurate manner with frequent 

reviews of the adequacy of provisions against contingencies, and bad and doubtful debts.  

Review the statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income for 

submission to the full board of directors and ensure the prompt publication of annual financial 

statements; 

Review internal controls, including the scope of the internal audit programme, the internal audit 

findings, and recommend action to be taken by management.  The reports of internal auditors and 

Audit Committee should not be subject to the clearance of the chief executive or executive 

directors. The Audit Committee should also evaluate the performance and decide on the 

remuneration package of the internal auditors; 

Review with the external auditors, the scope of their audit plan, the system of internal accounting 

controls, the audit reports, the assistance given by the management and its staff to the auditors 

and any findings and action to be taken.  The Audit Committee should also select external 

auditors for appointment by the board each year; and 
 

Review any related party transactions that may arise within The Bank of Nova Scotia group. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Membership and composition

The members of the Risk Management Committee are:-

Theodoor Joseph Bark 

Murugiah M N Singham 

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014)

Terms of Reference

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The primary functions of the Risk Management Committee are to assist the Board:- 

To perform such duties as may be required by Bank Negara Malaysia; 

To review credit, investment and market risks. Also, as required by regulatory agencies, to 

review, monitor and recommend to the Board for approval risk related policies, procedures and 

standards; 

To review management's periodic reports on risk exposure, risk portfolio composition and risk 
management activities; 
        

To review and assess adequacy of risk management policies and framework in identifying, 
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks and the extent to which these are operating 
effectively; and 
        

To ensure infrastructure, resources and systems are in place for risk management i.e. ensuring 

that the staff responsible for implementing risk management systems perform those duties 

independently of the licensed institutions' risk taking activities. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  (CONTD.)

Number of meetings held

Theodoor Joseph Bark 5 (5)

Murugiah M N Singham 5 (5)

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014) 2 (3)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014) 3 (3)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014) 3 (3)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014) 2 (2)

NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

Membership and composition

The members of the Nominating Committee are:-

Lodewijk Govaerts

Thedoor Joseph Bark

Murugiah M N Singham 

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014)

Terms of Reference

(a)

(b)

The Risk Management Committee was set up during the financial year 2010 and the attendance of 

the members during the financial year 2014 are as follows (the number of meetings held whilst they 

were members is shown in brackets):- 

 

The primary functions of the Nominating Committee are to assist the Board:- 

To establish minimum requirements for the Board, i.e. a required mix of skills, knowledge, 

experience and core competencies required of a director and make recommendations to the Board 

with regards to any changes through an annual review. The Committee is also responsible for 

establishing the minimum requirements for the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO").  The 

requirements and criteria should be approved by the Board; 

To assess and recommend the nominees for directors and board committee members as well as 

nominees for the CEO. This includes assessing and recommending all Board appointments, 

reappointments and resignations, before an application is submitted to Bank Negara Malaysia 

(BNM) for approval; 
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE (CONTD.)

Terms of Reference (contd.)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Number of meetings held

Lodewijk Govaerts 5 (5)

Thedoor Joseph Bark 5 (5)

Murugiah M N Singham 5 (5)

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014) 2 (3)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014) 3 (3)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014) 3 (3)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014) 2 (2)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Membership and composition

The members of the Remuneration Committee are:-

Thedoor Joseph Bark

Murugiah M N Singham 

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014)

To ensure that there are established performance evaluation processes for the effectiveness of the 

Board as a whole and the contribution of each director to the effectiveness of the Board, the 

contribution of the Board’s various committees and the performance of the CEO and other key 

senior management officers. An annual assessment should be conducted based on objective 

performance criteria and such performance criteria should be approved by the Board; and  

To oversee the overall composition of the Board, in terms of the appropriate size and skills, and 

the balance between executive directors, non-executive directors and independent directors 

through annual review; 

To recommend to the Board the removal of a director  or CEO from his/her position on the Board 

and management if he or she is ineffective, errant and negligent in discharging his/her 

responsibilities; 

To assess the fitness and propriety of directors and senior management on an annual basis, to 

ensure that the directors and key senior management officers are not disqualified under Section 

59 of the Financial Services Act 2013 and continue to comply with the ‘fit and proper’ standards. 

The Nominating Committee was set up during the financial year 2012 and the attendance of the 

members during the financial year 2014 are as follows (the number of meetings held whilst they 

were members is shown in brackets):- 
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTD.)

Terms of Reference

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Number of meetings held

Thedoor Joseph Bark 4 (4)

Murugiah M N Singham 4 (4)

Janis Tan Hwee Lin Bremner (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Noel Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh (appointed on 5 May 2014) 2 (2)

Geh Cheng Hooi (retired on 15 April 2014) 1 (2)

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat (retired on 15 April 2014) 2 (2)

Philip Victor Seymour (resigned on 10 April 2014) 2 (2)

Claude David Morin (resigned on 28 February 2014) 1 (1)

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the Board: - 

To recommend to the Board for approval a remuneration framework for Directors, CEO and key 

senior management officers. The remuneration framework should support the Bank’s culture, 

objectives and strategy and should reflect the responsibility and commitment, which goes with 

Board membership and the responsibilities of the CEO and senior management officers. There 

should be a balance in determining the remuneration package, which should be sufficient to 

attract and retain Directors of calibre, and yet not excessive to the extent that the Bank’s funds 

are used to subsidise any excessive remuneration packages. The framework should cover all 

aspects of remuneration including Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, share options 

and benefits-in-kind; 

To support a remuneration framework that supports the Bank’s culture, objectives and strategy 
and in order to be consistent with The Bank of Nova Scotia’s global  strategies, the Bank has 
adopted The Bank of Nova Scotia compensation program as governed by the policies and 
practices set out in The Bank of Nova Scotia Compensation Policy; and 
 

Where major decisions related to the objective of this Committee are made by the parent 

company, the Committee shall evaluate the issues before making recommendations to the Board 

for adoption and consult with the human resources department of The Bank of Nova Scotia as 

appropriate. 

To recommend specific remuneration packages for the executive directors and the CEO. The 

package should be structured such that it is competitive and consistent with the Bank’s culture, 

objectives and strategy. Salary scales drawn up should be within the scope of the general 

business policy and not be dependent on short-term performance to avoid incentives for 

excessive risk-taking. As for non-executive directors and independent directors, the level of 

remuneration should be linked to their level of responsibilities undertaken and contribution to the 

effective functioning of the Board; 

The Remuneration Committee was set up during the financial year 2012 and the attendance of the 

members during the financial year 2014 are as follows (the number of meetings held whilst they 

were members is shown in brackets):- 
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RISK MANAGEMENT

INTERNAL AUDIT

(a)

(b)

(c)

Efficiency and effectiveness of operations, including the safeguarding of assets;  

Reliability of financial reporting; and  

Compliance with laws and regulations.  

The scope of work of the Audit Department is set with the objective of determining whether the 

Group's global network of internal control, risk management, and governance processes are 

adequately designed and effectively implemented by management to provide reasonable assurance 

that the following internal control objectives are achieved: 

The local internal audit function in The Bank of Nova Scotia Berhad (BNSB) reports to the Audit 

Committee of BNSB and is also under the supervision of The Bank of Nova Scotia, Executive 

Offices Audit department through an additional reporting relationship to the Regional Chief Auditor, 

Europe and Asia/Pacific.  The local internal audit function is supported through review of the annual 

audit plan, review of work completed, training, as well as periodic audits carried out by the BNS 

Head Office audit teams which include specialist audit staff for areas such as credit risk, market risk, 

regulatory compliance risk and IT audit services. 

 

The mission of the Audit Department is to provide enterprise-wide, independent, objective assurance 

over the quality and effectiveness of the organisation’s controls and operational and risk management 

processes and to provide advisory services designed to improve Scotiabank Group’s operations. The 

Audit Department helps the Scotiabank Group accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 

disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of risk management, internal 

control and governance processes. The Audit Department employs a risk-based approach, driven by a 

systematic and comprehensive risk assessment model which is used to risk assess the audit universe, 

identify priority areas for audit, and establish frequency for cyclical audit projects. 

 

The fundamental framework for the Audit Department is the COSO framework, a well-recognised 

risk and control framework for the evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of internal 

control. The use of the COSO framework is fully integrated into the work of the Audit Department, 

including audit planning, the development of audit programs, and audit reporting. 

Extensive risk management procedures and policies are in place and employed by the BNS Group to 

efficiently manage the operational, credit, market and liquidity risks arising from commercial 

activities undertaken by the Bank. The risk management policies are closely adhered to and the 

Board has oversight of this to ensure that the operations of the Bank are conducted in a prudent 

manner.  Detailed descriptions of the core risks are provided in Note 35 to the financial statements. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

INTERNAL AUDIT (CONTD.)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

MANAGEMENT REPORTS

BANK RATINGS

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Bank has not been rated by any external agencies. 

Directors who served since the date of the last report are: 

There were no changes in the authorised, issued and paid-up capital of the Bank during the financial 

year. There were no debentures issued during the financial year. 

The scope of work includes an assessment of whether:  

 

Risks and controls are appropriately identified, assessed, managed and monitored across the 

global bank and its outsourced operations;  

An effective control environment is maintained;  

Information is effectively shared and issues are appropriately escalated and communicated; and  

Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the Group's control process.  

The scope of the reviews is focused on areas of priority as identified by risk analysis and in 

accordance with the annual internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. During the 

financial year, BNSB’s Audit Committee carried out its duties as set out in the terms of reference.  

The Audit Committee has active oversight on the internal audit’s independence, scope of work and 

resources. The Audit Committee regularly reviews the actions taken on internal control issues 

identified in reports prepared by Internal Audit and evaluates the effectiveness and adequacy of the 

Group’s internal control system.   

 

Internal audit has defined procedures to report control deficiencies or breaches noted which includes 

obtaining management action plans for correction. Follow-up and escalation procedures are in place 

for tracking all deficiencies or breaches to full resolution. 

The Board receives and reviews regular reports from the management on key operating statistics, 

regulatory and compliance matters and minutes of the Management Committee Meetings. In 

addition, the Board is briefed on the performance and operations of the Bank during each Board 

meeting. 

There are no other significant related party transactions other than as reported in Note 31. 
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OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

As at

1.11.2013

(or at date of As at

appointment) Acquired Disposed 31.10.2014

In The Bank of Nova 

Scotia, Canada

Ordinary shares of Canadian $1 each:

Noel Singh 1,840           36             -            1,876           

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

HOLDING COMPANY

Number of shares 

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings maintained by the Bank in accordance with 

Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors’ beneficial interests in the shares of the Bank 

and its related corporations at financial year end are as follows: 

The other Directors did not hold or deal in the shares of the Bank and its related corporations during 

the financial year. 

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Bank during the financial 

year. 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Bank has received nor become 

entitled to receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments 

received or due and receivable by Directors as shown in Note 24 to the financial statements) by 

reason of a contract made by the Bank or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of 

which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial 

interest. 

 

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of 

enabling Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 

debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.                      

 

The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate 

holding company of the Bank. 
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AUDITORS

……………………………………………………………

LODEWIJK GOVAERTS

……………………………………………………………

MURUGIAH M N SINGHAM   

Kuala Lumpur

Date: 28 April 2015

The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:  

 

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 11 to 58 are drawn up in I, Gulam Rasool Khan bin T.M. Abdul Hameed, the Director primarily responsible for the 



18

2014 2013 2014 2013

Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds 3    1,130,502    1,278,379    1,130,472    1,278,349    

Deposits and placements with

financial institutions 4    360,000       200,000       360,000       200,000       

Financial investments 

available-for-sale 5    418,974       393,928       418,974       393,928       

Loans and advances 6    2,742,819    2,887,233    2,742,819    2,887,233    

Derivative financial assets 37  30,493         10,256         30,493         10,256         

Other assets 8    40,457         48,824         40,457         48,824         

Statutory deposits with 

Bank Negara Malaysia 9    18,174         596              18,174         596              

Investments in subsidiaries 10  -              -              30                30                

Plant and equipment 11  3,133           722              3,133           722              

Deferred tax assets 29  3,715           3,080           3,715           3,080           

Tax recoverable 6,003           2,638           6,003           2,638           

TOTAL ASSETS 4,754,270    4,825,656    4,754,270    4,825,656    

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers 12  1,074,196    821,660       1,074,196    821,660       

Deposits and placements of 

banks and other financial 

institutions 13  791,580       734,432       791,580       734,432       

Derivative financial liabilities 37  18,309         77,675         18,309         77,675         

Other liabilities 14  62,100         29,939         62,100         29,939         

Amounts owing to holding 

company 15  1,924,528    2,331,127    1,924,528    2,331,127    

Amounts owing to related 

company 11                11                11                11                

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,870,724    3,994,844    3,870,724    3,994,844    

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD
(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2014

Bank

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Group
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THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD
(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2014 (CONTD.)

20142014 20132013 20142014 2013

Note RM'000RM'000 RM'000RM'000 RM'000RM'000 RM'000

EQUITY

Share capital 16  122,375       122,375       122,375       122,375       

Reserves 17  761,171       708,437       761,171       708,437       

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE

    TO OWNERS OF

        THE BANK 883,546       830,812       883,546       830,812       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

EQUITY 4,754,270    4,825,656    4,754,270    4,825,656    

COMMITMENTS AND

CONTINGENCIES 34  4,369,733    5,314,178    4,369,733    5,314,178    

Group Bank

The notes set out on pages 24 to 83 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, 

these financial statements. 
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 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014

2014 2013

Note RM'000 RM'000

Interest income 18 169,819        177,876        

Interest expense 19 (84,972)        (88,315)        

Net interest income 84,847          89,561          

Net fee and commission income 20 12,488          10,902          

Net trading income 21 7,124            9,748            

Other operating income 22 1,360            201               

Net income 105,819        110,412        

Other operating expenses 23 (32,228)        (36,130)        

Operating profit 73,591          74,282          

Loans impairment (charges)/recovery 25 (1,169)          385               

Impairment on other assets 26 (128)             (77)               

Profit before taxation 72,294          74,590          

Income tax expense 27 (18,245) (18,840)        

Profit for the year 54,049          55,750          

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

Fair value reserve (financial investments

available-for-sale):-

Net changes in fair value (1,315)          (764)             

Total comprehensive income for the year 52,734          54,986          

Profit attributable to owners of the Bank 54,049          55,750          

Total comprehensive income attributable to 

  Owners of the Bank 52,734          54,986          

Basic earnings per share (sen) 28 44                 46                 

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD

Group and Bank

(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

The notes set out on pages 24 to 83 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, 

these financial statements. 
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Distributable

Share Share Statutory Regulatory Other Retained

Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Group and Bank

As at 1 November 2012 122,375   42,625    122,375     -             1,702         486,749         775,826  

Profit for the year -          -          -             -             -             55,750           55,750    

Other comprehensive

income net of tax

 - Net changes in fair value -          -          -             -             (764)           -                 (764)       

Total comprehensive

income for the year -          -          -             -             (764)           55,750           54,986    

Transfer to Regulatory Reserve -          -          -             1,710         -             (1,710)            -             

At 31 October 2013 122,375   42,625    122,375     1,710         938            540,789         830,812  

Note 17.1 Note 17.2 Note 17.3

Distributable

Share Share Statutory Regulatory Other Retained

Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Group and Bank

At 1 November 2013 122,375   42,625    122,375     1,710         938            540,789         830,812  

Profit for the year -          -          -             -             -             54,049           54,049    

Other comprehensive

income net of tax

 - Net changes in fair value -          -          -             -             (1,315)        -                 (1,315)    

Total comprehensive

income for the year -          -          -             -             (1,315)        54,049           52,734    

At 31 October 2014 122,375   42,625    122,375     1,710         (377)           594,838         883,546  

Note 17.1 Note 17.2 Note 17.3

Non-distributable

 STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD
(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Non-distributable

The notes set out on pages 24 to 83 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial 

statements. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014

Group Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation 72,294        74,590        72,294        74,590        

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of plant and equipment 685             581             685             581             

Impairment provisions 7,270          5,512          7,270          5,512          

Impairment provisions written back (6,056)        (5,847)         (6,056)         (5,847)        

Impairment on other assets 128             77               128             77               

Gains from disposal of financial 

    investments available-for-sale (1,246)        -              (1,246)         -                  

Dividend income (114)           (201)            (114)            (201)           

Unrealised gains arising from

derivative trading (1,203)        (2,081)         (1,203)         (2,081)        

Unrealised revaluation losses in 

foreign exchange 52               59               52               59               

Operating profit before working capital 

changes 71,810        72,690        71,810        72,690        

Changes in working capital:

Loans and advances 143,200      234,530      143,200      234,530      

Derivative financial assets (20,237)      (5,116)         (20,237)      (5,116)        

Other assets 8,367          (20,305)      8,367          (20,305)      

Statutory deposits with Bank Negara 

Malaysia (17,578)      23,905        (17,578)      23,905        

Deposits from customers 252,536      (194,723)    252,536      (194,723)    

Deposits and placements of banks and

other financial institutions 57,148        355,501      57,148        355,501      

Bills and acceptances payable -             (4,667)         -              (4,667)        

Derivative financial liabilities (59,366)      56,525        (59,366)      56,525        

Other liabilities 30,809        4,312          30,809        4,312          

Amounts owing to holding company (406,599)    129,002      (406,599)    129,002      

Cash generated from operations 60,090        651,654      60,090        651,654      

Income taxes paid (24,000)      (18,024)      (24,000)      (18,024)      

Income taxes refunded 2,193          -              2,193          -             

Net cash generated from

operating activities 38,283        633,630      38,283        633,630      

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014 (CONTD.)

Group Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment (1,796)        (139)            (1,796)         (139)           

Purchase of financial investments 

available-for-sale (1,416,291) (1,099,375) (1,416,291) (1,099,375) 

Proceeds from disposal and redemption of 

financial investments available-for-sale 1,391,813   1,290,951   1,391,813   1,290,951   

Dividend received 114             201             114             201             

Net cash (used in)/ generated from

    investing activities (26,160)      191,638      (26,160)      191,638      

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,123        825,268      12,123        825,268      

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 

of the financial year 1,478,379   653,111      1,478,349   653,081      

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the 

financial year 1,490,502   1,478,379   1,490,472   1,478,349   

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash and short-term funds 1,130,502   1,278,379   1,130,472   1,278,349   

Deposits and placements with financial

 institutions 360,000      200,000      360,000      200,000      

1,490,502   1,478,379   1,490,472   1,478,349   

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

The notes set out on pages 24 to 83 form an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, 

these financial statements. 
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1. Basis of preparation

(a)

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD
(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31 OCTOBER 2014

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and the Bank have been prepared in accordance with 

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.  

  

The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued by 

the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Group 

and the Bank: 

  

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effecting for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2014 

- Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: Investment Entities 

- Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Investment Entities 

- Amendments to MFRS 127, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: Investment 

   Entities 

- Amendments to MFRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial Assets 

   and Financial Liabilities  

- Amendments to MFRS 136, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non 

    Financial Assets 

- Amendments to MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Novation of  

   Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 

- IC Interpretation 21, Levies 

 

 

 

 

 

The Bank of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

Malaysia. The address of its registered office and principal place of business is as follows: 

 

Registered office/ Principal place of business 

Ground floor 

Menara Boustead 

No. 69, Jalan Raja Chulan 

50200 Kuala Lumpur 

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank as at and for the financial year ended 31 October 2014 

comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group). The financial statements of the 

Bank as at and for the financial year ended 31 October 2014 do not include other entities. 

 

The Bank is principally engaged in banking and related financial services, whilst the principal activities of the 

subsidiaries are stated in Note 10 to the financial statements. 

 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 April 2015. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

1. Basis of preparation (contd.)

(a) Statement of compliance (contd.)

 - MFRS 119, Employee Benefits (IAS 19 as amended by IASB in June 2011) 

 - MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements (IAS 27 as amended by IASB in December 2003)  

 - MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (IAS 28 as amended by IASB 

   in May 2011)

- Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards

  (Government Loans)

- Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards

 

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

July 2014 

- Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards     

   (Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and  

   2011-2013 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 8, Operating Segments (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle  

   and 2011-2013 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012  

   Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 119, Employee Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans: Employee   

   Contributions 

- Amendments to MFRS 124, Related Party Disclosures (Annual Improvements 2010-2012  

   Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 138, Intangible Assets (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 140, Investment Property (Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle) 

 

 

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2016 

- Amendments to MFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 

   (Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Annual Improvements 2012-2014 

   Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments in  

   Associates and Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its  

   Associate or Joint Venture 

- Amendments to MFRS 11, Joint Arrangements – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in 

   Joint Operations 

- MFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts 

- Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment and MFRS 138, Intangible Assets – 

   Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 

- Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment and MFRS 141, Agriculture – 

   Agriculture: Bearer Plants 

- Amendments to MFRS 119, Employee Benefits (Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle) 

- Amendments to MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate 

   Financial Statements 

- Amendments to MFRS 134, Interim Financial Reporting (Annual Improvements 2012-2014 

   Cycle) 

 

 

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2017 

- MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

 

 

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2018 

- MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014) 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

1. Basis of preparation (contd.)

(a) Statement of compliance (contd.)

The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned accounting standards, amendments 

and interpretations: 

 

• from the annual period beginning on 1 November 2016 for those accounting standards, 

amendments or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2016 except for MFRS 14, Amendments to MFRS 11, Amendments to MFRS 138, 

Amendments to MFRS 141, Amendments to MFRS 127 and Amendments to MFRS 128 

which are not applicable to the Group and the Bank. 

• from the annual period beginning on 1 November 2017 for those accounting standards, 

amendments or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2017. 

• from the annual period beginning on 1 November 2018 for those accounting standards, 

amendments or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2018. 

The initial application of the accounting standards, amendments or interpretations are not 

expected to have any material financial impacts to the current period and prior period financial 

statements of the Group and the Bank except as mentioned below: 

 

 

MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

 

MFRS 15 replaces MFRS 111, Construction Contracts, MFRS 118, Revenue, IC Interpretation 

13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real 

Estate, IC Interpretation 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and IC Interpretation 131, 

Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. MFRS 15 includes extensive new 

disclosure requirements. 

 

The Group and the Bank are currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the 

adoption of MFRS 15. 

 

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments 

 

MFRS 9 replaces the guidance in MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement on the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

and on hedge accounting. 

  

The Group and the Bank are currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the 

adoption of MFRS 9. 

 

from the annual period beginning on 1 November 2014 for those accounting standards, 

amendments or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2014 and 1 July 2014 except for IC Interpretation 21, Amendments to MFRS 2, 

Amendments to MFRS 8 and Amendments to MFRS 140 which are not applicable to the 

Group and the Bank. 

• 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

1. Basis of preparation (contd.)

(b) Basis of measurement

(c) Functional and presentation currency

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

Note 6 and Note 25 - Assessment of impairment provisions for loans and advances

Note 36 - Fair value estimation of financial assets and financial liabilities

T

T

f

fr

T

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the historical cost 

basis except for financial investments available-for-sale and derivative financial instruments as 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Bank’s 

functional currency. All financial information is presented in RM and has been rounded to the 

nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future 

periods affected. 

 

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 

accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements other than those disclosed in the following notes: 

• 
•  • 

• 
• 

The accounting policies that are deemed critical to the Group and the Bank's results and financial 

position, in terms of the materiality of the items to which the policy is applied, and which involve 

a high degree of judgement including the use of assumptions and estimation, are discussed 

below. 

 

 

 

 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies 

and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ 

from these estimates.  
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(Company No. 308035 U)

1. Basis of preparation (contd.)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements (cont'd)

i)     Impairment of loans and advances

ii)     Valuation of financial instruments

          •

        • 

          •

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

T

• 

• 

T

T

T

T

T• W t• s

The Group and the Bank measure fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that 

reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements: 

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category 

includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on 

observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's 

valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for 

similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are 

required to reflect differences between the instruments.  

 

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are 

based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. Availability of observable market 

prices and model inputs reduces the need for management judgement and estimation and 

also reduces the uncertainty associated with determination of fair values. Availability of 

observable market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and markets and is 

prone to changes based on specific events and general conditions in the financial markets. 

 

The determination of fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities for which there is 

no observable market price requires the use of valuation techniques. For financial 

instruments that are traded infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less 

objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, concentration, 

uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific 

instrument.  

 

 

 

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (as prices) or 

indirectly (derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted 

prices for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets 

that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant 

inputs are directly observable from market data. 

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical asset or  

liability. 

The Group and the Bank's accounting policy for losses arising from the impairment of 

customer loans and advances is described in Note 2(f)(vii)(A) to the financial statements. 

Loan impairment provisions represent management's best estimate of losses incurred in the 

loan portfolio at the reporting date. 

 

The specific counterparty component of the total provisions for impairment applies to 

financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based upon management's best 

estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating 

these cash flows, management makes judgements about a counterparty's financial situation 

and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral.  
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(Company No. 308035 U)

1. Basis of preparation (contd.)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements (cont'd)

ii)     Valuation of financial instruments (cont'd)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Group and Bank RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Financial investments available-

for-sale* (Note 5) -                   417,220    -                 417,220      

Derivative financial assets (Note 37) -                   30,493      -                 30,493        

-                   447,713    -                 447,713      

Derivative financial liabilities 

(Note 37) -                   18,309      -                 18,309        

-                   18,309      -                 18,309        

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Group and Bank RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Financial investments available-

for-sale* (Note 5) 1,426           390,748    -                 392,174      

Derivative financial assets (Note 37) -                   10,256      -                 10,256        

1,426           401,004    -                 402,430      

Derivative financial liabilities 

(Note 37) -                   77,675      -                 77,675        

-                   77,675      -                 77,675        

2. Significant accounting policies

 2013 

 2014 

T

IT

T• W t• s 

* Excludes equity securities which are carried at cost due to the lack of quoted prices in an 

active market or /and the fair values of the investments cannot be reliably measured. 

IT

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these 

financial statements and have been applied consistently by the Group and the Bank. 

 

Valuation techniques used to calculate fair values include comparisons with similar 

financial instruments for which market observable prices exist, discounted cash flow 

analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used in the 

market. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value that reflects the 

price of the financial instrument at the reporting date, that would have been determined by 

market participants acting at arm's length.   

 

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the 

respective reporting periods, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value 

measurement is categorised.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(a) Basis of consolidation

(b) Foreign currency transactions

(c) Interest income and expense

T

S

Subsidiaries 

 

Subsidiaries are entities, including unincorporated entities, controlled by the Group. The 

financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from 

the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Control exists when the Bank 

has the ability to exercise its power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so 

as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently 

are exercisable are taken into account. Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Bank’s 

statement of financial position at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is held 

for sale or distribution. The cost of investments includes transaction costs. The accounting 

policies of subsidiaries are changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by 

the Group. 

 

Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 

intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.  

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group 

entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting 

period are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. 

 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the 

end of the reporting period except for those that are measured at fair value which are retranslated 

to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. 

 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for 

differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments or a financial 

instrument designated as a hedge of currency risk, which are recognised in other comprehensive 

income. 

 

 

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss for all financial instruments using the 

effective interest method. The effective interest method is a way of calculating the amortised cost 

of a financial asset or a financial liability and allocating the interest income or interest expense 

over the relevant period. 

 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 

receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where 

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the 

effective interest rate, the Group and the Bank estimate cash flows considering all contractual 

terms of the financial instrument but not future credit losses. 

 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all amounts paid or received that are integral 

to the effective interest rate, including transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(d) Recognition of fees and other income

-

-

-

(e) Income tax

(f) Financial instruments

(i)  Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual basis. 

T

I

Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on an 

T

Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on an 

D

i

i

F

The Group and the Bank earn fee income from a diverse range of services they provide to their 

customers. Fee income is accounted for as follows: 

If the income is earned on the execution of a significant act, it is recognised as revenue when 

the significant act has been completed; 

If the income is earned as services are provided, it is recognised as revenue as the services 

are provided; and 

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a 

financial asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. It is 

recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate and recorded in interest income. 

Dividends from financial investments available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive 

the payment is established. 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in 

profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other 

comprehensive income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax 

payable in respect of previous years. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for reporting purposes and their tax bases. 

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of 

assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither 

accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 

to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 

tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same authority on the same 

taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets 

on a net basis of their assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

 

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 

be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 

reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, in the case of a 

financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to its acquisition or issue of the financial instrument. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(f) Financial instruments (contd.)

(ii)  Classification

(iii)  Derecognition

(iv)   Amortised cost measurement

(v)   Fair value measurement

 

I

C

A

R

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable Held-to-maturity are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable • • Available-for-sale financial assets are non derivatives that are either designated in this • Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. • 

F

F

Financial instruments are classified in the following categories - financial instruments at fair 

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, financial investments held-to-maturity 

and financial investments available-for-sale. Management determines the classification of 

financial instruments at initial recognition. 

 

Refer accounting policies 2(g), 2(i) and 2(j). 

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from 

these assets have ceased to exist or when the rights to receive further cash flows from the 

assets have been transferred to a third party and substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the assets are also transferred. Financial liabilities are derecognised when they 

are redeemed or extinguished. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset 

or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the 

cumulative accretion or amortisation using the effective interest rate of any difference 

between the initial amounts recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for 

impairment. 

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. In the normal course of 

business, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is the transaction 

price (the fair value of the consideration given or received). 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of financial instruments measured at fair 

value that are quoted in active markets are based on bid prices for assets held. When 

independent prices are not available, fair values are determined by using valuation 

techniques. 

 

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured 

are measured at cost, and assessed for impairment at each reporting date. 

 

If the fair value of a financial asset measured at fair value becomes negative, the financial 

instrument is recorded as a financial liability until the fair value becomes positive, at which 

time the financial instrument is recorded as a financial asset. 

 

The fair values of financial liabilities are determined by discounting the contractual cash 

flows, using market interest rates currently offered for deposits with similar terms and risks. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(f) Financial instruments (contd.)

(vi)   Offsetting

(vii)   Impairment of financial assets

         (A)   Loans and advances

T

A

F

A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 

statements of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under the MFRSs. 

 

At each reporting date, the Group and the Bank assess whether there is objective evidence 

that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial 

asset or a group of financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that 

a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event 

has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably. 

 

Evidence of impairment may include indications that an issuer of securities or a borrower 

or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulties, default or 

delinquency in interest or principal repayments, that it is possible that they will enter 

bankruptcy or other financial conditions and that there are observable data indicating a 

reasonable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or 

economic conditions that correlate with default. 

The Group and the Bank will classify loans as impaired when repayments are in arrears 
for more than three (3) months from the first day of default or after maturity date, or 
once there is objective evidence that the customer's account is impaired, whichever is 
sooner. 
 
Individual impairment provisions are made for impaired debts which have been 
individually reviewed and specifically identified as impaired. 
 
An uncollectible loan or portion of a loan classified as impaired is written off after 
taking into consideration the discounted realisable value of collateral, if any, when in 
the opinion of management, there is no prospect of recovery. 

 

Impaired loans are measured at their estimated recoverable amount based on the 

discounted cash flow methodology. Individual impairment provisions are provided if 

the recoverable amount (present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at 

original effective interest rate) is lower than the net book value of the loans. 
 

For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment, loans are grouped on the basis 

of similar credit risk characteristics. Collective impairment for a group of loans is 

assessed based on the historical loss experience in terms of default rate and estimated 

recovery rate. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(f) Financial instruments (contd.)

(vii)   Impairment of financial assets (contd.)

       (B)   Financial investments

(g) Loans and advances

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Financial investments

(i)  Held-to-maturity

T

E

Loans and advances are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 

costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less 

any impairment losses. 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and placements with 

financial institutions which are stated at placement value and which are subject to insignificant 

risk of change in value. Cash and short-term funds comprise of cash in hand, balances and 

deposits and placements with financial institutions which are maturing within one month. 

Investments are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid assets 

requirement. 

The holdings of the investments portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based on 

the following categories and consequently their valuation methods: 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments and fixed maturities that the Group and the Bank positively intend, and are able, to 

hold to maturity. These investments are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly 

attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. 

The Group and the Bank assess at each reporting date whether there is objective 

evidence that a financial investment classified as available-for-sale is impaired. 

Impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of 

impairment as a result of one or more events that occured after the initial recognition of 

the financial investment ('a loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on 

the estimated future cash flows of the financial investment that can be reliably 

estimated. 

 

An impairment loss in respect of financial investments available-for-sale is recognised 

in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset's acquisition cost 

(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and the asset's current fair value, less 

any impairment loss previously recognised. Where a decline in the fair value of a 

financial investment available-for-sale has been recognised in other comprehensive 

income, the cumulative loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity 

to profit or loss. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(i) Financial investments (contd.)

(ii)  Available-for-sale

C

T

L

A

• for an available-for-sale debt security, a subsequent decline in the fair value of the 

instrument is recognised in profit or loss when there is further objective evidence of 

impairment as a result of further decreases in the estimated future cash flows of the 

financial asset. Where there is no further objective evidence of impairment, the decline 

in the fair value of the financial asset is recognised in other comprehensive income. If 

the fair value of a debt security increases in a subsequent period, and the increase can 

be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised 

in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent of 

the increase in fair value; 

Available-for-sale investments are non derivative financial assets that are not classifed as 

held-for-trading or held-to-maturity investments; and are initially measured at fair value 

plus direct and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently remeasured at fair 

value, and changes therein are recognised in other comprehensive income in 'Fair value 

reserve - Change in fair value' until the financial assets are either sold or become impaired. 

When available-for-sale financial assets are sold, cumulative gains or losses previously 

recognised in other comprehensive income are recognised in profit or loss as 'Amount 

transferred to profit or loss'.  

 

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market 

and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost. 

 

Interest income earned on available-for-sale debt securities is recognised using the effective 

interest rate method, calculated over the asset's expected life. Premiums and/ or discounts 

arising on the purchase of dated investment securities are included in the calculation of their 

effective interest rates. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in 

profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established. 

 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to weather there is any objective evidence 

of impairment in the value of a financial asset. Impairment losses are recognised if, and only 

if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss events that 

occured after the initial recognition of the financial asset and that loss event (or events) has 

an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably 

estimated. 

 

If the available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the difference between the financial 

asset's acquisition cost (net of any principal repayments and amortisation) and the current 

fair value, less any previous impairment loss recognised, is removed from other 

comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Impairment losses for available-for-sale investments are recognised within 'Impairment on 

other assets' in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

Once an impairment loss has been recognised on an available-for-sale financial asset, the 

subsequent accounting treatment for changes in the fair value of that asset differs depending 

on the nature of the available-for-sale financial asset concerned. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(i) Financial investments (contd.)

(ii)  Available-for-sale (contd.)

(j) Financial assets held-for-trading

(k) Plant and equipment

Securities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired or incurred principally for the 

purpose of selling or repurchasing them in the near term or they are part of a portfolio of 

identified securities that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual 

pattern of short-term profit-taking. These financial assets are recognised on trade date, when the 

Group or the Bank enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties to purchase or sell 

the financial assets, and are normally derecognised when sold. Measurement is initially at fair 

value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequently, the fair values are remeasured, 

and gains and losses therein, together with any related interest income earned are recognised in 

profit or loss. 

 

A

Recognition and measurement 

 

Items of plant and equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 

accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition of the asset and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working 

condition for its intended use. 

 

When significant parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of plant and equipment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• for an available-for-sale equity security, all subsequent increases in the fair value of 

the instrument are treated as a revaluation and are recognised in other comprehensive 

income. Impairment losses recognised on the equity security are not reversed through 

profit or loss. Subsequent decreases in the fair value of the available-for-sale equity 

security are recognised in profit or loss, to the extent that further cumulative 

impairment losses have been incurred in relation to the acqusition cost of the equity 

security. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(k) Plant and equipment (contd.)

Office equipment, furniture and fittings 2.5 years to 20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

(l) Operating lease payments

(m) Derivative financial instruments

Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or held-

Leases where the Group or the Bank does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the ownership are classified as operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised on the 

Group or the Bank's statement of financial position. 

 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis 

over the term of the lease. 

A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Directors 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange 

Derivatives are recognised initially, and are subsequently measured, at fair value. Fair values of 

over-the-counter derivatives are obtained using valuation techniques such as discounted cash 

flow models and option pricing models. 

 

Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive, or as liabilities when their 

fair value is negative. Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different transactions are only 

offset if the transactions are with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset exists, and the 

parties intend to settle the cash flows on a net basis. 

 

 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the end of each reporting 

period. 

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of plant and equipment are determined by comparing the 

proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of plant and equipment and are recognised net 

within "other operating income" and "other operating expenses" respectively in profit or loss. 

 

Subsequent costs 

 

The cost of replacing a component of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the 

carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within 

the component will flow to the Group or the Bank and its cost can be measured reliably. The 

costs of the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as 

incurred. 

 

Depreciation 

 

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 

of each component of an item of plant and equipment from the date that they are available for 

use. Plant and equipment under construction are not depreciated until the assets are ready for 

their intended use. 

 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(n) Financial guarantees

(o) Impairment of other assets

(p) Provisions

(q) Bills and acceptances payable

Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. 

Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 

required to settle a current legal or constructive obligation, which had arisen as a result of past 

events, and for which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and acceptances 

rediscounted and outstanding in the market. Bills and acceptances payable are stated at 

amortised cost. 

A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover possible assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as collateral for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value will The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be 

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the end of 

each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 

indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.   

 

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of 

assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 

inflows of other assets (known as cash-generating unit).   

 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and 

its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit. 

 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating 

unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 

 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.  Impairment losses recognised in respect of 

cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 

to the cash-generating unit  or the group of cash-generating units and then to reduce the carrying 

amount of the other assets in the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) on a 

pro rata basis. 

 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for 

any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if 

there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last 

impairment loss was recognised.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 

asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 

net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.  Reversals of 

impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which the reversals are 

recognised. 

 

Liabilities under financial guarantee contracts are recorded initially at their fair value, which is 

generally the fee received or receivable. Subsequently, financial guarantee liabilities are 

measured at the higher of the initial fair value, less cumulative amortisation, and the best 

estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

(r) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

(s) Fair value measurement

In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, statutory The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet date. The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the relevant The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to offer 

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave 

and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is 

provided. 

 

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or 

profit-sharing plans if the Group or the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 

this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be 

estimated reliably. 

 

The Group’s and the Bank’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss 

in the year to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group and the Bank 

have no further payment obligations. 

 

 

The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with

The basic earnings

The recognised

The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which are 

The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks that Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels of Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. Liquidity Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised 

Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the

Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: 

The recognised deferred tax (assets) and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     

The adoption of the following new FRSs, amendments to FRSs and IC Interpretations during the FRS 139 establishes the principles for the recognition, derecognition and measurement of an entity's 

From 1 November 2013, the Group adopted MFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement which 

prescribed that fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease 

transactions, is determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 

a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The 

measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 

either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 

market. 

 

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant's 

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 

to another marker participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

 

In accordance with the transitional provision of MFRS 13, the Group applied the new fair value 

measurement guidance prospectively, and has not provided any comparative fair value 

information for new disclosure. The adoption of MFRS 13 has not significantly affected the 

measurements of the Group's assets and liabilites other than the additional disclosures. 
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3. Cash and short-term funds

2014 2013 2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Cash and balances with banks and 

other financial institutions 6,502           5,379        6,472          5,349          

Money at call and deposit placements

    maturing within one month 1,124,000    1,273,000 1,124,000   1,273,000   

1,130,502    1,278,379 1,130,472   1,278,349   

4. Deposits and placements with financial institutions

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Licensed banks 360,000      200,000      

5. Financial investments available-for-sale

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Quoted money market instruments - at fair value:

- Malaysian Government securities 201,182      204,078      

- Bankers' acceptances 216,038      186,670      

417,220      390,748      

Quoted equity securities - at fair value:

- Shares quoted in Malaysia -                 1,426          

Unquoted equity securities - at cost:

- Unquoted shares in Malaysia 1,754          1,754          

418,974      393,928      

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

BankGroup
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6. Loans and advances

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

(i) By type

Overdrafts 40,810        50,689        

Term loans

- housing loans 160,800      192,455      

- syndicated term loans 66,786        39,469        

- other term loans 370,960      532,684      

Bills receivable 544,137      582,115      

Revolving credit 1,599,653   1,538,647   

Staff loans (2014: Nil; 2013: RM83,000 are to Directors) 3,119          3,491          

Other loans 12,997        10,519        

2,799,262   2,950,069   

Less: Unearned interest (2,368)        (2,573)         

Gross loans and advances 2,796,894   2,947,496   

Less: Impairment provisions on loans and advances

- Individual impairment provisions (Note 7(ii)) (22,122)      (26,895)       

- Collective impairment provisions (Note 7(ii)) (31,953)      (33,368)       

Net loans and advances 2,742,819   2,887,233   

(ii) By type of customer

Domestic non-bank financial institutions

- Others 182,168      159,988      

Domestic business enterprises

- Small medium enterprises 85,616        88,927        

- Others 1,871,304   2,006,321   

Government and statutory bodies -                 39,469        

Individuals 261,914      245,559      

Foreign entities 395,892      407,232      

Gross loans and advances 2,796,894   2,947,496   

Group and Bank

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October 2005 The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the half 
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6. Loans and advances (contd.)

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

(iii) By geographical distribution

Northern region 214,617      278,892      

Southern region 593,454      541,047      

Central region 1,579,488   1,674,436   

Eastern region 33,946        68,194        

Outside Malaysia 375,389      384,927      

Gross loans and advances 2,796,894   2,947,496   

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

(iv) By interest rate sensitivity

Fixed rate:

- Housing loans 2,900          3,138          

- Other fixed rate loans 640,656      696,417      

Variable rate:

- Base Lending Rate plus 352,556      596,743      

- Cost plus 1,800,782   1,650,995   

- Other variable rates -                 203             

Gross loans and advances 2,796,894   2,947,496   

(v) By sector

Agriculture 535,853      563,592      

Manufacturing 736,207      798,823      

Construction 177,159      89,716        

Real estate 34,455        7,492          

Purchase of landed property:

- Residential 168,687      201,550      

- Non-residential 56,400        61,488        

Wholesale & retail trade and restaurants & hotels 182,470      174,841      

Transport, storage and communication 100,098      120,000      

Finance, insurance and business services 693,036      832,293      

Purchase of securities 26,000        26,000        

Purchase of transport vehicles 182             301             

Consumption credit 71,305        21,931        

Government of Malaysia -                 39,469        

Others 15,042        10,000        

Gross loans and advances 2,796,894   2,947,496   

Group and Bank

(Company No. 308035 U)

Group and Bank

The Northern region consists of the states of Perlis, Kedah, Penang, Perak, Kelantan and 

Terengganu. 

The Southern region consists of the states of Johor, Melaka and Pahang. 

The Central region consists of the states of Selangor, Negeri Sembilan and the Federal Territory 

of Kuala Lumpur. 

The Eastern region consists of the states of Sabah, Sarawak and the Federal Territory of 

Labuan. 
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6. Loans and advances (contd.)

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

(vi) By residual contractual maturity

Within one year 2,508,050   2,470,981   

One year to five years 79,926        216,418      

Over five years 208,918      260,097      

Gross loans and advances 2,796,894   2,947,496   

7. Impaired loans and advances

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

(i) Movements in impaired loans and advances

At beginning of financial year 41,175        37,796        

Classified as impaired during the financial year 17,631        22,128        

Reclassified as performing during the financial year (3,571)        (8,603)         

Amount recovered (10,063)      (8,385)         

Amount written off (7,402)        (1,761)         

At end of financial year 37,770        41,175        

Individual impairment provisions (22,122)      (26,895)       

Net impaired loans and advances 15,648        14,280        

Ratio of net impaired loans and advances to net loans and 

 advances (net of individual impairment provisions) 0.56% 0.49%

(ii) Movements in collective and individual impairment provisions 

    for loans and advances

Collective impairment provisions

At beginning of financial year 33,368        34,572        

Amount written back (1,415)        (1,204)         

At end of financial year 31,953        33,368        

As % of gross loans and advances (net of individual 

impairment provisions) 1.15% 1.14%

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

(Company No. 308035 U)
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7. Impaired loans and advances (contd.)

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

(ii) Movements in collective and individual impairment provisions 

    for loans and advances (contd.)

Individual impairment provisions

At beginning of financial year 26,895        27,787        

Impairment made during the financial year 7,270          5,512          

Impairment written back in respect of recoveries (4,641)        (4,643)         

Amount written off (7,402)        (1,761)         

At end of financial year 22,122        26,895        

(iii) By geographical distribution

Southern region 983             1,059          

Central region 30,159        36,674        

Outside Malaysia 6,628          3,442          

37,770        41,175        

(iv) By sector

Purchase of landed property:

- Residential 21,884        28,986        

- Non-residential 7,387          5,180          

Wholesale & retail trade and restaurants & hotels 7,244          5,551          

Consumption credit 1,255          1,458          

37,770        41,175        

8. Other assets

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Interest receivable 10,063        13,899        

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 30,394        34,925        

40,457        48,824        

9. Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in compliance 

with Section 37(1)(c) of the Central Bank of Malaysia Act 1958 (revised 1994), the amounts of which 

are determined as set percentages of total eligible liabilities. 
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10. Investments in subsidiaries

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Unquoted shares, at cost 30               30               

The subsidiaries of the Bank are as follows:

Principal

Subsidiaries activities

2014 2013

Scotia Nominees (Malaysia)

 Sdn. Bhd. Nominee services Malaysia 100% 100%

Scotia Nominees (Asing) 

Sdn. Bhd. Nominee services Malaysia 100% 100%

Scotia Nominees (Tempatan)

 Sdn. Bhd. Nominee services Malaysia 100% 100%

11. Plant and equipment

Office

equipment,

furniture Motor Project-in-

and fittings vehicles progress Total

Group and Bank RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Cost

At 1 November 2012 11,501         162           -             11,663        

Additions 139              -            -             139             

Write off (25)               -            -             (25)              

At 31 October 2013 / 1 November 2013 11,615         162           -             11,777        

Additions 496              -            2,600          3,096          

Write off (428)             -            -             (428)            

At 31 October 2014 11,683         162           2,600          14,445        

Depreciation

At 1 November 2012 10,337         162           -             10,499        

Charge for the year 581              -            -             581             

Write off (25)               -            -             (25)              

At 31 October 2013 / 1 November 2013 10,893         162           -             11,055        

Charge for the year 685              -            -             685             

Write off (428)             -            -             (428)            

At 31 October 2014 11,150         162           -             11,312        

Bank

Effective

ownership interest

Country of

incorporation

All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in the 
financial statements of the Bank. 
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11. Plant and equipment (contd.)

Office

equipment,

furniture Motor Project-in-

and fittings vehicles progress Total

Group and Bank RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amounts

At 1 November 2012 1,164           -                -                 1,164          

At 31 October 2013 / 1 November 2013 722              -                -                 722             

At 31 October 2014 533              -                2,600          3,133          

12. Deposits from customers

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

(i) By type of deposit

Demand deposits 72,127        77,625        

Savings deposits 5,867          7,032          

Fixed/Investment deposits 595,693      502,641      

Others 400,509      234,362      

1,074,196   821,660      

(ii) Maturity structure of fixed/investment deposits

Due within six months 578,276      331,416      

Six months to one year 16,742        171,142      

More than one year 675             83               

595,693      502,641      

(iii) By type of customer

Business enterprises 998,033      691,088      

Individuals 75,611        104,059      

Others 552             26,513        

1,074,196   821,660      

13. Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Licensed banks 360,000      281,500      

Other financial institutions 431,580      452,932      

791,580      734,432      

Group and Bank

Group and Bank
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14. Other liabilities

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Interest payable 8,530          6,713          

Other payables and accruals 53,570        23,226        

62,100        29,939        

15. Amounts owing to holding company

The amounts owing to holding company are subject to normal trade terms.

16. Share capital

2014 2013 2014 2013

'000 '000 RM'000 RM'000

Authorised:

At 1 November / 31 October 200,000       200,000    200,000      200,000      

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 November / 31 October 122,375       122,375    122,375      122,375      

Group and Bank

Number of ordinary

shares of RM1 each Amount

 Group and Bank 

The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate 

holding company of the Bank. 

 

The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial 
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17. Reserves

17.1 Statutory Reserve

17.2 Regulatory Reserve

17.3 Other Reserve

18. Interest income

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Loans and advances:

-  Interest income other than recoveries from impaired loans 109,043      123,634      

-  Recoveries from impaired loans 1,401          1,018          

Money at call and deposit placement with 

financial institutions 45,118        38,304        

Financial investments available-for-sale 5,266          7,382          

Others 8,991          7,538          

Total interest income 169,819      177,876      

19. Interest expense

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Deposits and placements of banks and 

      other financial institutions 22,450        17,797        

Deposits from customers 30,892        26,750        

Arbitrage interest 22,125        34,216        

Others 9,505          9,552          

84,972        88,315        

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 47 of the Financial Services Act

2013 and is not distributable as cash dividends.

The other reserve is in respect of unrealised fair value gains and losses on financial investments

available-for-sale. 

BNM requires the Bank to maintain, in aggregate, collective impairment provisions and 

regulatory reserve no less than 1.2% of total outstanding loans, net of individual impairment 

provisions. As at 31 October 2014, the collective impairment provisions stands at 1.15%. 

Accordingly, the Bank has transferred RM1.71 million from retained earnings to regulatory 

reserve. 
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20. Net fee and commission income

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Other fees relating to loans 6,638          4,202          

Commitment fees 1,223          1,374          

Guarantee fees 2,381          2,511          

Acceptance commissions 897             1,170          

Others 1,349          1,645          

12,488        10,902        

21. Net trading income

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Gains arising from dealing in foreign currency 5,973          7,726          

Unrealised revaluation losses in foreign exchange (52)             (59)              

Unrealised gains arising from derivative trading 1,203          2,081          

7,124          9,748          

22. Other operating income

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Dividend income:

- Financial investments available-for-sale 114             201             

Gains on disposal of financial investments available-for-sale 1,246          -                  

1,360          201             

23. Other operating expenses

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Personnel costs:

- Salaries and bonuses 13,157        14,276        

- Pension fund contributions 1,894          2,421          

- Other staff costs 3,169          2,448          

Marketing expenses:

- Advertising and promotion 156             215             

- Others 641             603             

Establishment costs:

- Depreciation of plant and equipment 685             581             

- Rental 2,347          2,367          

- Others 3,569          6,185          

Administrative expenses:

- Fees 4,971          5,583          

- Others 1,639          1,451          

32,228        36,130        

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

Group and Bank
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23. Other operating expenses (contd.)

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

The above expenditure includes the following statutory disclosures:

Directors' remuneration, excluding benefits-in-kind (Note 24) 2,186          2,172          

Rental of premises 2,255          2,271          

Hire of equipment 92               96               

Auditors' remuneration

   - current year 168             168             

   - others 121             161             

The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

Key management personnel:

   - Short-term employee benefits 3,502          3,705          

   - Post-employment benefits 411             371             

24. Directors' remuneration

Aggregate remuneration of all Directors during the year are as follows:

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Executive Directors

Lodewijk Govaerts 

- salary and other remuneration 961             130             

- benefits-in-kind 1,049          109             

Gulam Rasool Khan bin T.M. Abdul Hameed

- salary and other remuneration 962             1,783          

- benefits-in-kind 14               50               

2,986          2,072          

Non-Executive Directors

Dato’ Kok Wee Kiat

- fees 23               85               

Geh Cheng Hooi 

- fees 22               104             

Theodoor Joseph Bark

- fees 95               11               

Dato' Dr. Thillainathan A/L Ramasamy

- fees -                 15               

Murugiah M N Singham

- fees 75               44               

Veerinderjeet Singh s/o Tejwant Singh

- fees 48               -                  

263             259             

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the Bank, 

having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group 

and of the Bank either directly or indirectly. 

Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: 
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25. Loans impairment charges/(recovery)

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Impairment provisions for loans and advances

(a) Individual impairment provisions:

- made in the financial year 7,270          5,512          

- written back in respect of recoveries (4,641)        (4,643)         

(b) Collective impairment provisions:

- written back (1,415)        (1,204)         

Bad debts on loans and advances:

- Recovered (45)             (50)              

1,169          (385)            

26. Impairment on other assets

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Financial investments available-for-sale

- quoted equity securities 128             77               

27. Income tax expense

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Current tax expense

- current year 18,022        20,432        

- under provision in prior years 420             491             

18,442        20,923        

Deferred tax expense (Note 29)

- origination and reversal of temporary differences 239             (1,692)         

- over provision in prior years (436)           (391)            

(197)           (2,083)         

18,245        18,840        

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

Group and Bank
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27. Income tax expense (contd.)

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Reconciliation of effective tax expense

Profit before taxation 72,294        74,590        

Income tax using Malaysian tax rates @ 25% 18,074        18,648        

Non-deductible expenses 187             92               

18,261        18,740        

(Over)/Under provision in prior years (16)             100             

Tax expense 18,245        18,840        

28. Basic earnings per share

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Number of ordinary shares in issue ('000) (a) 122,375      122,375      

Profit attributable to owners (RM'000) (b) 54,049        55,750        

Basic earnings per share (sen) [(b)/(a)] 44               46               

29. Deferred tax assets

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Plant and equipment 88               60               

Others (3,678)        (3,453)         

(3,590)        (3,393)         

Revaluation of financial investments available-for-sale (125)           313             

(3,715)        (3,080)         

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to owners 

and the number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

The recognised deferred tax (assets) and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     
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29. Deferred tax assets (contd.)

Plant and Other

equipment Others reserve Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities

At 1 November 2012 89                (1,399)       567             (743)            

Recognised in profit or loss

  (Note 27) (29)               (2,054)       -             (2,083)         

Recognised in other comprehensive

income -               -            (254)           (254)            

At 31 October /1 November 2013 60                (3,453)       313             (3,080)         

Recognised in profit or loss

  (Note 27) 28                (225)          -             (197)            

Recognised in other comprehensive

income -               -            (438)           (438)            

At 31 October 2014 88                (3,678)       (125)           (3,715)         

30. Credit exposures to connected parties

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Aggregate value of outstanding credit exposures to connected parties -                 -                  

As a percentage of total credit exposures 0.00% 0.00%

Group and Bank

Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: 

The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara 

Malaysia's "Guidelines on Credit Transactions and Exposures with Connected Parties" are as follows:- 

There are no outstanding credit exposures to connected parties which are non-performing or in default. 
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31. Significant related party transactions and balances

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Expenditure:

Holding company

Computer license agreement 2,837          2,395          

Technical fees 1,240          574             

Technical support 865             1,009          

Computer maintenance 203             251             

Holding company

Interest payable on loans 7,535          7,442          

Income:

Holding company

Interest receivable on deposits -                 (1)                

Balances with holding company and related companies:

Amount due from holding company

Current accounts 1,556          1,113          

Amount due to holding company

Current accounts (602)           (319)            

Loans (1,925,482) (2,331,921)  

Amount due to related company

 Current accounts (11)             (11)              

32. Lease commitments

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Within one year 1,725          2,597          

After one year but not more than five years 238             1,931          

1,963          4,528          

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which are 

classified as operating leases. A summary of the non-cancellable long-term lease commitments is as 

follows:    

The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms 

which are not more favourable than those generally available to public. 
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33. Capital adequacy

(a) The capital adequacy ratios of the Group and of the Bank are analysed as follows:

2014 2013

RM'000 RM'000

Tier 1 capital

Paid-up share capital 122,375      122,375      

Share premium 42,625        42,625        

Retained earnings 594,838      540,789      

Reserves 122,375      122,375      

882,213      828,164      

Less: Deferred tax assets (3,590)        (3,393)         

Total Tier 1 capital 878,623      824,771      

Tier 2 capital

Collective impairment provisions,

representing total Tier 2 capital 31,953        33,368        

Regulatory Reserve 1,710          1,710          

Total capital 912,286      859,849      

Less: Investments in subsidiaries (30)             (30)              

Capital base 912,256      859,819      

Core capital ratio 30.81% 27.39%

Risk-weighted capital ratio 31.99% 28.56%

Breakdown of gross risk-weighted assets ("RWA") in the various categories of risk-weights:

Principal Risk- Principal Risk-

weighted weighted

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Total RWA for credit risk 4,985,581    2,634,520 5,251,409   2,791,819   

Total RWA for market risk -                   14,639      -                 2,994          

Total RWA for operational risk -                   202,227    -                 216,066      

4,985,581    2,851,386 5,251,409   3,010,879   

20132014

Group and Bank

Group and Bank

In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, statutory The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet date. The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the relevant The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks that Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels of Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. Liquidity Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised 

With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are 

computed in accordance with Bank Negara Malaysia's revised Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy 

Framework (RWCAF-Basel II). The Group and the Bank have adopted the Standardised 

Approach for Credit Risk and Market Risk, and the Basic Indicator Approach for Operational 

Risk. 

 

The adoption of the following new FRSs, amendments to FRSs and IC Interpretations during the FRS 139 establishes the principles for the recognition, derecognition and measurement of an entity's 
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34. Commitments and contingencies

Group and Bank  Principal Amount 

 Positive Fair 

Value of Derivate 

Contracts 

 Credit 

Equivalent 

Amount 

 Risk Weighted 

Assets 

31 October 2014  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000 

Credit-related exposures

Direct credit substitutes 2,000                        2,000                   -                      

Transaction-related contingent items 182,856                    91,428                 90,439                 

Short term self liquidating trade-related contingencies 43,176                      8,635                   8,214                   

and credit lines, with an original maturity of:

- exceeding one year 1,287                        644                      644                      

- not exceeding one year 322,598                    64,520                 64,520                 

1,336,230                 -                      -                      

1,888,147                 167,227               163,817               

Derivative financial contracts

Foreign exchange related contracts:

- less than one year 1,950,571                 30,474                  57,135                 18,845                 

- exceeding one year 413,331                    -                        37,390                 17,125                 

Interest rate related contracts:

- less than one year 50,000                      19                         52                        26                        

- one year to less than five years 67,684                      -                        1,371                   1,033                   

2,481,586                 30,493                  95,948                 37,029                 

Total 4,369,733                 30,493                  263,175               200,846               

Other commitments, such as formal standby facilities 

Unutilised uncommitted credit lines
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34. Commitments and contingencies (contd.)

Group and Bank  Principal Amount 

 Positive Fair 

Value of Derivate 

Contracts 

 Credit 

Equivalent 

Amount 

 Risk Weighted 

Assets 

31 October 2013  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000 

Credit-related exposures

Direct credit substitutes 43,000                      43,000                 40,000                 

Transaction-related contingent items 352,816                    176,408               47,357                 

Short term self liquidating trade-related contingencies 84,311                      16,862                 15,636                 

and credit lines, with an original maturity of:

- exceeding one year 1,850                        925                      925                      

- not exceeding one year 353,914                    70,783                 70,783                 

1,436,201                 -                      -                      

2,272,092                 307,978               174,701               

Derivative financial contracts

Foreign exchange related contracts:

- less than one year 2,770,004                 10,256                  54,604                 16,851                 

- one year to less than five years 97,617                      -                        4,880                   1,663                   

Interest rate related contracts:

- less than one year 104,465                    -                        110                      55                        

- one year to less than five years 70,000                      -                        700                      350                      

3,042,086                 10,256                  60,294                 18,919                 

Total 5,314,178                 10,256                  368,272               193,620               

Other commitments, such as formal standby facilities 

Unutilised uncommitted credit lines
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35. Risk management

(a) Credit Risk

Impairment assessment

Past due but not impaired loans and financial investments available-for-sale

(Company No. 308035 U)

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the half Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the historical Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual basis. Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income when Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and rewards Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and placements Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid assets Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the Bank A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other than Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and acceptances Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their interest Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to equity The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for the Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for trading or The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. The Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group and The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest balances, A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the following Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank at Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the balance A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit under The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara 

• • • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade receivables 

The primary goals of risk management are to ensure that the outcomes of risk-taking activities are 

predictable and consistent with the Bank's strategies and risk appetite, and there is an appropriate 

balance between risk and reward in order to maximise shareholder returns. 

 

The Bank's risk management policies define the Bank's risk appetite, set the limits and controls within 

which the Bank can operate, and reflect the requirements of regulatory authorities.  

 guidelines are developed to clarify risk limits and conditions under which the Bank's risk 

• target markets and product offerings are well defined; • the risk parameters for new underwritings and for the portfolios as a whole are clearly • transactions, including origination, syndication, loan sales and hedging, are managed in 

Individually impaired loans and financial investments available-for-sale are loans and advances 

and securities for which the Bank determines that there is objective evidence of impairment and 

it does not expect to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of 

the loans/securities.  

 

When impairment of loans and advances occurs, the Bank reduces the carrying amount of loans 

and advances through the use of an allowance account. When impairment of securities 

available-for-sale occurs, the carrying amount of the assets is reduced directly. For further 

details, see Note 2(f)(vii) of the financial statements. 

 

 

Past due but not impaired loans and financial investments available-for-sale are those for which 

contractual interest or principal payments are past due, but the Bank believes that impairment is 

not probable on the basis of the level of security/collateral available and / or the stage of 

collections of amounts owed to the Bank. 

 

 

Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour 

its financial or contractual obligation. Credit risk arises both in the Bank’s direct lending 

operations and in its funding, investment and trading activities, where counterparties have 

repayment or other obligations to the Bank. 

 

Policies for managing credit risk are as per the Bank's Credit Risk Policy Manual which 

follows the parent bank's credit risk strategy and credit risk policy developed by its Global 

Risk Management department and are reviewed and approved by the Board on an annual basis. 

Specific procedures for managing credit risk are determined at the business levels with specific 

policies and procedures being adopted to different risk environment and business goals 

including an internal grading system. Credit analysis includes review of facility details, 

financial and risk analysis.   

 

The credit risk policy sets out, among other things, the credit risk rating system and associated 

parameter estimates and the delegation of authority for granting credit. It forms an integral part 

of enterprise-wide policies and procedures that encompass governance, risk management and 

control structure. The Bank's credit risk rating system is designed to support the determination 

of key credit risk parameter estimates which measure credit and transaction risk. 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(a) Credit Risk (contd.)

Loans with renegotiated terms

Write off policy

i)  Cash and cash equivalents;


ii)  Marketable securities;


iii)  Mortgages over residential and non-residential properties;


iv)  Charges over business assets such as premises, stocks and debtors;


v)  Corporate and personal guarantees

(i)   Credit quality of non-retail exposures

Credit decisions are made based upon an assessment of the credit risk of the individual 

borrower or counterparty. Key factors considered in the assessment include: the borrower's 

management; the borrower's current and projected financial results and credit statistics; the 

industry in which the borrower operates; economic trends; and geopolitical risk. The Bank 

and the parent bank's Global Risk Management also review the credit quality of the credit 

portfolio across the organisation on a regular basis to assess whether economic trends or 

specific events may affect the performance of the portfolio. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Bank does not disclose the fair value of collateral held as security or other credit 

enhancements on loans and advances past due but not impaired, or on individually assessed 

impaired loans and advances as it is not practicable to do so. 

 

As at 31 October 2014, the approximate market value of collateral accepted that may be sold 

or repledged by the Bank was RM34.1 million (2013: RM33.9 million). 

 

Collateral especially properties are made available for sale in an orderly fashion, with the 

proceeds used to reduce or repay the outstanding indebtedness. If excess funds arise after the 

debt has been repaid, they are made available either to repay other secured lenders with lower 

priority or are returned to the customer. 

 

 

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the 

borrower's financial position and where the Bank has made concessions that it would not 

otherwise consider. Once the loan is restructured it remains in this category independent of 

satisfactory performance after restructuring. 

Loans and advances are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no 

realistic prospect of further recovery. Lending facilities may be provided unsecured depending 

on the customer's standing and the type of facilities. The Bank actively pursues opportunities to 

mitigate credit risk by securing collateral. 

 

The principal collateral types employed by the Bank are as follows: 
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35. Risk management

(a) Credit Risk (contd.)

(i)   Credit quality of non-retail exposures (contd.)

Cross referencing of internal ratings to external ratings

Internal Grades ("IG")  Moodys 

Investment grade

99 - 98 Aaa to Aa1

95 - 90 Aa2 to A3

87 - 83 Baa1 to Baa3

Non-investment grade

80 - 75 Ba1 to Ba3

73 - 70 B1 to B3

Watch List

65 - 30

Default

27 - 21

(ii)   Credit quality of retail exposures

 Equivalent External Ratings 

 S&P 

 AAA to AA+ 

AA to A-

BBB+ to BBB-

 BB+ to BB- 

B+ to B-

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

The Bank's non-retail portfolio is well diversified by industry. Significant portion of the 

authorised corporate and commercial lending portfolio was internally assessed at a grade 

that would generally equate to an investment grade rating by external rating agencies. 

 

Internal grades are used to differentiate the loss given default of borrower. The following 

table cross references the Bank's internal borrower grades with equivalent ratings 

categories utilised by external rating agencies: 

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the half Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the historical Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual basis. Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income when Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and rewards Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and placements Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid assets Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the Bank A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other than Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and acceptances Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their interest Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to equity The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance 

This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for the Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for trading or The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. The Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to 

The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group and The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest balances, A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the following Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank at Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the balance A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit under The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara 

The Bank's credit underwriting methodology and risk modeling is more customer 

focused. Customer's credit worthiness is assessed using total debt service ratio, credit 

scoring, historical repayment behaviour and financing margin or down payment. Other 

assessments taken into consideration include location, value and type of collateral. 

• The risks and rewards of the pledged assets reside with the pledgor. • Additional collateral is required when the market value of the transaction exceeds • The Bank is normally permitted to sell or repledge the collateral it receives, • Upon satisfaction of the obligation, the Bank must return the pledged assets; unless 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(a) Credit Risk (contd.)

i)  Exposure to credit risk 

Group Loans and Loans and Investment 

advances to advances to Securities **

customers banks *

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amount 2,742,819    1,490,502   417,220         

Assets at amortised cost

  Individually impaired :

Gross amount 37,770         -             -                 

Individual impairment provisions (22,122)       -             -                 

Carrying amount 15,648         -             -                 

  Collective impairment provisions (31,953)       -             -                 

  Past due but not impaired :

Carrying amount 69,117         -             -                 

  Past due comprises :

up to 29 days 19,932         -             -                 

30 - 59 days 30,888         -             -                 

60 - 179 days 18,297         -             -                 

69,117         -             -                 

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade 1,009,309    1,490,502   -                 

Non-investment grade 1,355,172    -             -                 

Watch List 102,595       -             -                 

Retail exposures 222,931       -             -                 

Carrying amount 2,690,007    1,490,502   -                 

of which includes accounts with 

renegotiated terms 29,788         -             -                 

Carrying amount-amortised cost 2,742,819    1,490,502   -                 

Available-for-sale (AFS)

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade -              -             417,220         

Carrying amount-fair value -              -             417,220         

*

**

(Company No. 308035 U)

31 Oct 2014

There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet There were no significant changes in the composition of the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have 

This FRS sets out the new requirements for the Securities are classified as held for trading if they were Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income 

The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair • • • 

• for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties • for other loans - charges over business assets such as 

In addition to the above, the Group had entered into lending commitments of RM1.66 

billion. The Group had also issued financial guarantee contracts for which the maximum 

amount payable by the Group, assuming all guarantees are called on, is RM0.23 billion. 

Consists of cash and short term funds, deposits and placements with banks and other 

financial institutions. 

Excludes equity securities. 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(a) Credit Risk (contd.)

i)  Exposure to credit risk

Group Loans and Loans and Investment 

advances to advances to Securities **

customers banks *

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amount 2,887,233    1,478,379   390,748         

Assets at amortised cost

  Individually impaired :

Gross amount 41,175         -             -                 

Individual impairment provisions (26,895)       -             -                 

Carrying amount 14,280         -             -                 

  Collective impairment provisions (33,368)       -             -                 

  Past due but not impaired :

Carrying amount 78,884         -             -                 

  Past due comprises :

up to 29 days 24,193         -             -                 

30 - 59 days 37,156         -             -                 

60 - 179 days 17,535         -             -                 

78,884         -             -                 

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade 958,740       1,478,379   -                 

Non-investment grade 1,671,935    -             -                 

Retail exposures 196,762       -             -                 

Carrying amount 2,827,437    1,478,379   -                 

of which includes accounts with 

renegotiated terms 120,303       -             -                 

Carrying amount-amortised cost 2,887,233    1,478,379   -                 

Available-for-sale (AFS)

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade -              -             390,748         

Carrying amount-fair value -              -             390,748         

*

**

(Company No. 308035 U)

31 Oct 2013

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet There were no significant changes in the composition of the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have 

This FRS sets out the new requirements for the Securities are classified as held for trading if they were Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income 

The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, 

• for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties • for other loans - charges over business assets such as 

In addition to the above, the Group had entered into lending commitments of RM1.79 

billion. The Group had also issued financial guarantee contracts for which the maximum 

amount payable by the Group, assuming all guarantees are called on, is RM0.48 billion. 

Consists of cash and short term funds, deposits and placements with banks and other 

financial institutions. 

Excludes equity securities. 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(a) Credit Risk (contd.)

i)  Exposure to credit risk (contd.)

Bank Loans and Loans and Investment 

advances to advances to Securities **

customers banks *

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amount 2,742,819    1,490,472   417,220         

Assets at amortised cost

  Individually impaired :

Gross amount 37,770         -             -                 

Individual impairment provisions (22,122)       -             -                 

Carrying amount 15,648         -             -                 

  Collective impairment provisions (31,953)       -             -                 

  Past due but not impaired :

Carrying amount 69,117         -             -                 

  Past due comprises :

up to 29 days 19,932         -             -                 

30 - 59 days 30,888         -             -                 

60 - 179 days 18,297         -             -                 

69,117         -             -                 

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade 1,009,309    1,490,472   -                 

Non-investment grade 1,355,172    -             -                 

Watch List 102,595       -             -                 

Retail exposures 222,931       -             -                 

Carrying amount 2,690,007    1,490,472   -                 

of which includes accounts with 

renegotiated terms 29,788         -             -                 

Carrying amount-amortised cost 2,742,819    1,490,472   -                 

Available-for-sale (AFS)

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade -              -             417,220         

Carrying amount-fair value -              -             417,220         

*

**

(Company No. 308035 U)

31 Oct 2014

There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet There were no significant changes in the composition of the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have 

This FRS sets out the new requirements for the Securities are classified as held for trading if they were Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income 

The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and Subsequent costs  Subsidiaries • • • 

• for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties • for other loans - charges over business assets such as 

In addition to the above, the Bank had entered into lending commitments of RM1.66 billion. 

The Bank had also issued financial guarantee contracts for which the maximum amount 

payable by the Bank, assuming all guarantees are called on, is RM0.23 billion. 

Consists of cash and short term funds, deposits and placements with banks and other 

financial institutions. 

Excludes equity securities. 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(a) Credit Risk (contd.)

i)  Exposure to credit risk (contd.)

Bank Loans and Loans and Investment 

advances to advances to Securities **

customers banks *

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amount 2,887,233    1,478,349   390,748         

Assets at amortised cost

  Individually impaired :

Gross amount 41,175         -             -                 

Individual impairment provisions (26,895)       -             -                 

Carrying amount 14,280         -             -                 

  Collective impairment provisions (33,368)       -             -                 

  Past due but not impaired :

Carrying amount 78,884         -             -                 

  Past due comprises :

up to 29 days 24,193         -             -                 

30 - 59 days 37,156         -             -                 

60 - 179 days 17,535         -             -                 

78,884         -             -                 

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade 958,740       1,478,349   -                 

Non-investment grade 1,671,935    -             -                 

Retail exposures 196,762       -             -                 

Carrying amount 2,827,437    1,478,349   -                 

of which includes accounts with 

renegotiated terms 120,303       -             -                 

Carrying amount-amortised cost 2,887,233    1,478,349   -                 

Available-for-sale (AFS)

  Neither past due nor impaired :

Investment grade -              -             390,748         

Non-investment grade -              -             -                     

Carrying amount-fair value -              -             390,748         

*

**

(Company No. 308035 U)

31 Oct 2013

Excludes equity securities. 

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet There were no significant changes in the composition of the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have 

This FRS sets out the new requirements for the Securities are classified as held for trading if they were Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income 

The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia The preparation of financial statements requires management to Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, 

• for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties • for other loans - charges over business assets such as 

In addition to the above, the Bank had entered into lending commitments of RM1.79 billion. 

The Bank had also issued financial guarantee contracts for which the maximum amount 

payable by the Bank, assuming all guarantees are called on, is RM0.48 billion. 

Consists of cash and short term funds, deposits and placements with banks and other 

financial institutions. 

Excludes equity securities. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

35. Risk management (contd.)

(a)  Credit Risk (contd.)

ii)  Concentration by sector and by location

** **

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amount 1,490,502  417,220       1,478,379   390,748         

By sector

Finance, insurance and business 

 service 1,490,502  216,038       1,478,379   186,670         

Government of Malaysia -             201,182       -             204,078         

1,490,502  417,220       1,478,379   390,748         

By geographical location

Within Malaysia 1,486,747  417,220       1,476,204   390,748         

Outside Malaysia 3,755         -              2,175          -                 

1,490,502  417,220       1,478,379   390,748         

*

**

#

 Loans and 

advances to 

banks* 

 Investment 

securities 

Group

 Loans and 

advances to 

banks* 

 Investment 

securities 

31 Oct 2014 31 Oct 2013

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the half Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the historical Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual basis. Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income when Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and rewards Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and placements Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid assets Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the Bank A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other than Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and acceptances Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their interest Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to equity The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance 

This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for the Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for trading or The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. The Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to 

The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group and The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest balances, A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the following Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank at Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the balance A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit under The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara 

• for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade 

A concentration of credit risk exists when a number of counterparties are engaged in 

similar activities and have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to 

meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic and other 

conditions. The analysis of credit risk concentration presented below relates only to 

financial assets subject to credit risk and are based on the industry in which the customer is 

engaged. 

 

Consists of cash and short term funds, deposits and placements with banks and other 

financial institutions. 

Excludes equity securities. 

Concentration by sector and location for loans and advances to customers is disclosed under 

Note 6(iii) and 6(v) to the financial statements. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

35. Risk management (contd.)

(a)  Credit Risk (contd.)

ii)  Concentration by sector and by location (contd.)

** **

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Carrying amount 1,490,472  417,220       1,478,349   390,748         

By sector

Finance, insurance and business 

 service 1,490,472  216,038       1,478,349   186,670         

Government of Malaysia -             201,182       -             204,078         

1,490,472  417,220       1,478,349   390,748         

By geographical location

Within Malaysia 1,486,717  417,220       1,476,174   390,748         

Outside Malaysia 3,755         -              2,175          -                 

1,490,472  417,220       1,478,349   390,748         

*

**

#

31 Oct 2014 31 Oct 2013

 Loans and 

advances to 

banks* 

 Investment 

securities 

Bank

 Loans and 

advances to 

banks* 

 Investment 

securities 

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the half Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the historical Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual basis. Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income when Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and rewards Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and placements Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid assets Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the Bank A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other than Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and acceptances Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their interest Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to equity The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance 

This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for the Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for trading or The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. The Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to 

The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group and The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest balances, A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the following Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank at Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the balance A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit under The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara 

• for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade 

A concentration of credit risk exists when a number of counterparties are engaged in 

similar activities and have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to 

meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic and other 

conditions. The analysis of credit risk concentration presented below relates only to 

financial assets subject to credit risk and are based on the industry in which the customer is 

engaged. 

 

Consists of cash and short term funds, deposits and placements with banks and other 

financial institutions. 

Excludes equity securities. 

Concentration by sector and location for loans and advances to customers is disclosed under 

Note 6(iii) and 6(v) to the financial statements. 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(b) Liquidity Risk

RM'000

As at 31 Oct 2014

Deposits from customers 332,337         708,385       37,626           718               

Deposits and placements of banks 

and other financial institutions 785                696,177       103,634         -                

Amount owing to holding company 49,773           1,205,843    671,770         -                

Amount owing to related company 11                  -               -                -                

Loan and other credit-related 

commitments 322,679         -               -                1,206            

Financial guarantees and similar 

contracts 228,032         -               -                -                

(Company No. 308035 U)

Due within 3 

months

Due between 

3 months to 

12 months

Due between 

1 and 5 years

On demand

The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the • • • Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

• • • 

The following tables summarise financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the 

remaining contractual maturities as at the financial year end, on an undiscounted basis. 

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank • for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade 

The key elements of the Bank's liquidity risk management framework include: 

• liquidity risk measurement and management limits, including limits on maximum net cash 

outflow by currency over specified short-term horizons; 

• prudent diversification of its wholesale funding activities by using a number of • sufficient holdings of liquid assets to support its operations, which can generally be sold or 

pledged to meet the Bank's obligations; 

• liquidity stress testing, including Bank-specific, Canada-systemic, and global-• liquidity contingency planning. 

Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. Liquidity 

risk is the risk of not being able to obtain funds at a reasonable price within a reasonable time period 

to meet obligations as and when they fall due. 

 

Liquidity risk is monitored through Bank Negara Malaysia’s New Liquidity Framework and managed 

by the Bank's Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO).  

 

In addition, a comprehensive Contingency Liquidity Funding Plan is also established to ensure that 

alternative funding strategies are in place and can be implemented on a timely manner to minimise 

liquidity risk that may arise due to unforeseen adverse changes in the market place. 



68

35. Risk management (contd.)

(b) Liquidity Risk (contd.)

RM'000

As at 31 Oct 2013

Deposits from customers 105,472         526,689       196,633         66                 

Deposits and placements of banks 

and other financial institutions 101,115         442,889       199,059         -                

Amount owing to holding company 242,650         2,089,441    -                -                

Amount owing to related company 11                  -               -                -                

Loan and other credit-related 

commitments 353,914         -               -                1,850            

Financial guarantees and similar 

contracts 480,125         -               -                -                

(Company No. 308035 U)

On demand Due within 3 

months

Due between 

3 months to 

12 months

Due between 

1 and 5 years

The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to 

• • • 

Cash flows payable in respect of customer accounts are primarily contractually repayable on demand or 

at short notice. However, in practice, short term deposit balances remain stable as inflows and outflows 

broadly match and a significant portion of loan commitments expire without being drawn upon. 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c) Market Risk

(i)  Interest Rate Risk

(ii)  Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

(Company No. 308035 U)

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara • for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Market risk arises from changes in market prices and rates (including interest rates and 
The Bank uses a variety of metrics and models to measure and control market risk 

exposures. The measurements used are selected based on an assessment of the nature of 

risks in a particular activity. The principal measurement techniques are Value at Risk 

(VaR), stress testing, sensitivity analysis and gap analysis. The ALCO reviews results from 

these metrics monthly.  

 

VaR is a statistical measure that estimates the potential loss in value of the Bank's 

positions due to adverse market movements over a defined time horizon with a specified 

confidence level. The quality of the Bank's VaR is validated by regular back testing 

analysis, in which the VaR is compared to theoretical and actual profit and loss results. To 

complement VaR, the Bank also uses stress testing to examine the impact that abnormally 

large swings in market factors and periods of prolonged inactivity might have on trading 

portfolios. The stress testing program is designed to identify key risks and ensure that the 

Bank's capital can absorb potential losses from abnormal events. The Bank subjects its 

trading portfolios to more than 75 stress tests on a daily basis, and more than 250 stress 

tests on a monthly basis.  

 

Sensitivity analysis assesses the effect of changes in interest rates on current earnings and 

on the economic value of assets and liabilities.  

 

Gap analysis is used to assess the interest rate sensitivity of the Bank's operations. Under 

gap analysis, interest rate sensitive assets, liabilities and derivative instruments are 

assigned to defined time periods, on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. 
 

Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign 

exchange rates, market prices and volatilities that arise from the Bank’s funding, 

investment and trading activities. 

  

Market risk arising from trading activities is controlled by marking-to-market the trading 

positions against their predetermined market risk limits. 

 

The primary categories of market risk for the Bank are: 
 

Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign 

currency positions taken from time to time. Open positions in foreign currency 

transactions are monitored against predetermined position limits and cut-loss limits. 
 

Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in 

the levels of interest rate and shifts in the composition of the assets and liabilities. 

Interest rate exposures in individual currencies are controlled by gap limits. The 

potential reduction in net interest income from an unfavourable interest rate movement 

of +/- 50 basis points is prepared and reviewed every fortnightly. 

 

The effect of interest rate changes on the market value of investments are monitored 

closely and mark-to-market valuations are regularly reported to management. 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c) Market Risk

(i)  Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Economic value of equity

As at 31 Oct 2014 United States Ringgit Total United States Ringgit Total

RM'000 Dollar Malaysia Dollar Malaysia

100 bp increase (65.88)            700.00           (765.88)          (98.82)            320.00             (418.82)          

100 bp decrease -                 (700.00)          700.00           32.94             (310.00)            342.94           

Economic value of equity

As at 31 Oct 2013 United States Ringgit Total United States Ringgit Total

RM'000 Dollar Malaysia Dollar Malaysia

100 bp increase (568.35)          530.00           (1,098.35)       (536.78)          (260.00)            (276.78)          

100 bp decrease -                 (530.00)          530.00           126.30           300.00             (173.70)          

(Company No. 308035 U)

Net income

Net income

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October 2005 The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of the There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material effect There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure or There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the half Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or held-In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, statutory The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet date. The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the relevant The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to offer Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the historical Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual basis. Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income when all Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and placements Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid assets Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the Bank had A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Directors Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other than Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive cash Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions are Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and acceptances Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their interest rate Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in compliance All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in the The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to equity The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which are The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks that Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels of Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. Liquidity The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for the Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for trading or The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based on A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover possible Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value will Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. The Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a contract During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised BNM/GP8 The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to 26% The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the Bank, These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group and the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on an Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest balances, net A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover possible The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the following bands Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank at Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the balance A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised on an A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover possible Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or held-Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet date. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit under The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value will Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is determined With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara • for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade receivables or The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

The Bank actively manages its interest rate exposures with the objective of enhancing net interest income within established risk 

tolerances. Interest rate risk arising from the Bank's funding and investment activities is managed in accordance with Board-

approved policies and global limits, which are designed to control the risk to income and economic value of shareholders' 

equity. The income limit measures the effect of a specified shift in interest rates on the Bank's annual net income, while the 

economic value limit measures the impact of a specified change in interest rates on the present value of the Bank's net assets. 

Interest rate exposures in individual currencies are also controlled by gap limits.  

• for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade receivables or 

Based on the Bank's interest rate positions, the following table shows the impact on the Bank's net income over the next twelve 

months and economic value of shareholders' equity of an immediate and sustained 100 basis point increase and decrease in 

interest rates across major currencies as defined by the Bank. 

• • • 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap

Group Non-trading book Effective

2014 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Assets

Cash and short-term funds 1,124,000  -            -            -              -              6,502            -         1,130,502 3.32        

Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions -             360,000    -            -              -              -               -         360,000    3.48        

Financial investments:

- available-for-sale 143,475     72,563      99,812      101,370      -              1,754            -         418,974    3.94        

Loans and advances:

- performing 1,651,762  817,697    253,991    249             3,472          -               -         2,727,171 3.70        

- impaired -             -            -            -              -              15,648          -         15,648      -          

Derivative financial assests -             -            -            -              -              -                   30,493    30,493      -          

Others -             -            -            -              -              71,482          -         71,482      -          

Total assets 2,919,237  1,250,260 353,803    101,619      3,472          95,386          30,493    4,754,270 

Liabilities

Deposits from customers 892,304     144,606    36,611      675             -              -               -         1,074,196 3.63        

Deposits and placements of banks

and other financial institutions 479,464     211,867    100,249    -              -              -               -         791,580    3.62        

Derivative financial liabilities -             -            -            -              -              -               18,309    18,309      -          

Others 891,387     359,995    660,193    -              620             74,444          -         1,986,639 0.71        

Total liabilities 2,263,155  716,468    797,053    675             620             74,444          18,309    3,870,724 

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various 

The management of interest rate risk exposure through sensitivity analysis is supplemented with interest rate gap limits.  

 

In respect of interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective interest rates at the reporting date 

and the periods in which they reprice or mature, whichever is earlier. 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap (contd.)

Group Non-trading book Effective

2014 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Equity -             -            -            -              -              883,546        -         883,546        -

Total liabilities and equity 2,263,155  716,468    797,053    675             620             957,990        18,309    4,754,270 

On-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap 656,082     533,792    (443,250)   100,944      2,852          (862,604)      12,184    

Off-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap (45,126)      1,550        (2,240)       (275)            -              -               -         

Total interest rate sensitivity 

gap 610,956     535,342    (445,490)   100,669      2,852          (862,604)      12,184    
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap (contd.)

Bank Non-trading book Effective

2014 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Assets

Cash and short-term funds 1,124,000  -            -            -              -              6,472            -         1,130,472 3.32        

Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions -             360,000    -            -              -              -               -         360,000    3.48        

Financial investments:

- available-for-sale 143,475     72,563      99,812      101,370      -              1,754            -         418,974    3.94        

Loans and advances:

- performing 1,651,762  817,697    253,991    249             3,472          -               -         2,727,171 3.70        

- impaired -             -            -            -              -              15,648          -         15,648      -          

Derivative financial assests -             -            -            -              -              -               30,493    30,493      -          

Others -             -            -            -              -              71,512          -         71,512      -          

Total assets 2,919,237  1,250,260 353,803    101,619      3,472          95,386          30,493    4,754,270 

Liabilities

Deposits from customers 892,304     144,606    36,611      675             -              -               -         1,074,196 3.63        

Deposits and placements of banks

and other financial institutions 479,464     211,867    100,249    -              -              -               -         791,580    3.62        

Derivative financial liabilities -             -            -            -              -              -               18,309    18,309      -          

Others 891,387     359,995    660,193    -              620             74,444          -         1,986,639 0.71        

Total liabilities 2,263,155  716,468    797,053    675             620             74,444          18,309    3,870,724 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap (contd.)

Bank Non-trading book Effective

2014 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Equity     -     -     -     - -              883,546            - 883,546        -

Total liabilities and equity 2,263,155  716,468    797,053    675             620             957,990        18,309    4,754,270 

On-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap 656,082     533,792    (443,250)   100,944      2,852          (862,604)      12,184    

Off-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap (45,126)      1,550        (2,240)       (275)            -              -                       -

Total interest rate sensitivity 

gap 610,956     535,342    (445,490)   100,669      2,852          (862,604)      12,184    
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap (contd.)

Group Non-trading book Effective

2013 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Assets

Cash and short-term funds 1,273,000  -            -            -              -              5,379            -         1,278,379 3.03        

Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions -             200,000    -            -              -              -               -         200,000    3.18        

Financial investments:

- available-for-sale 67,177       104,781    100,000    102,777      -              19,193          -         393,928    3.76        

Loans and advances:

- performing 1,808,418  874,195    68,066      119,016      3,258          -               -         2,872,953 4.07        

- impaired -             -            -            -              -              14,280          -         14,280      -          

Derivative financial assests -             -            -            -              -              -               10,256    10,256      -          

Others -             -            -            -              -              55,860          -         55,860      -          

Total assets 3,148,595  1,178,976 168,066    221,793      3,258          94,712          10,256    4,825,656 

Liabilities

Deposits from customers 543,165     87,156      191,276    63               -              -               -         821,660    3.50        

Deposits and placements of banks

and other financial institutions 474,534     65,925      193,973    -              -              -               -         734,432    3.32        

Derivative financial liabilities -             -            -            -              -              -               77,675    77,675      -              

Others 1,486,964  875,742    -            -              358             (1,987)          -         2,361,077 0.73        

Total liabilities 2,504,663  1,028,823 385,249    63               358             (1,987)          77,675    3,994,844 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap (contd.)

Group Non-trading book Effective

2013 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Equity -             -            -            -              -              830,812        -         830,812        -

Total liabilities and equity 2,504,663  1,028,823 385,249    63               358             828,825        77,675    4,825,656 

On-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap 643,932     150,153    (217,183)   221,730      2,900          (734,113)      (67,419)  

Off-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap 45,958       (186,992)   98,810      (1,049)         -              -               -         

Total interest rate sensitivity 

gap 689,890     (36,839)     (118,373)   220,681      2,900          (734,113)      (67,419)  
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap (contd.)

Bank Non-trading book Effective

2013 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Assets

Cash and short-term funds 1,273,000  -            -            -              -              5,349            -         1,278,349 3.03        

Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions -             200,000    -            -              -              -               -         200,000    3.18        

Financial investments:

- available-for-sale 67,177       104,781    100,000    102,777      -              19,193          -         393,928    3.76        

Loans and advances:

- performing 1,808,418  874,195    68,066      119,016      3,258          -                   -         2,872,953 4.07        

- impaired -             -            -            -              -              14,280          -         14,280      -          

Derivative financial assests -             -            -            -              -              -                   10,256    10,256      -          

Others -             -            -            -              -              55,890          -         55,890      -          

Total assets 3,148,595  1,178,976 168,066    221,793      3,258          94,712          10,256    4,825,656 

Liabilities

Deposits from customers 543,165     87,156      191,276    63               -              -               -         821,660    3.50        

Deposits and placements of banks

and other financial institutions 474,534     65,925      193,973    -              -              -               -         734,432    3.32        

Derivative financial liabilities -             -            -            -              -              -               77,675    77,675      -          

Others 1,486,964  875,742    -            -              358             (1,987)          -         2,361,077 0.73        

Total liabilities 2,504,663  1,028,823 385,249    63               358             (1,987)          77,675    3,994,844 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c)   Market Risk (contd.)

  (i)   Interest rate risk (contd.)

                Interest rate sensitivity gap (contd.)

Bank Non-trading book Effective

2013 Up to 1 >1 - 3 >3 - 12 Non-interest Trading interest

month months months 1 - 5 years Over 5 years sensitive book Total rate

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 %

Equity     -     -     -     - -              830,812            - 830,812        -

Total liabilities and equity 2,504,663  1,028,823 385,249    63               358             828,825        77,675    4,825,656 

On-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap 643,932     150,153    (217,183)   221,730      2,900          (734,113)      (67,419)  

Off-balance sheet interest

sensitivity gap 45,958       (186,992)   98,810      (1,049)         -              -                   -

Total interest rate sensitivity 

gap 689,890     (36,839)     (118,373)   220,681      2,900          (734,113)      (67,419)  
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(c) Market Risk (contd.)

(ii)   Foreign exchange risk

Group and Bank As at 

RM'000 31 October 2014 Average Maximum Minimum

Foreign currency 

risk 59                       59                165               9                    

Group and Bank As at 

RM'000 31 October 2013 Average Maximum Minimum

Foreign currency 

risk 15                       24                69                 6                    

(Company No. 308035 U)

For the year ended 31 October 2014

For the year ended 31 October 2013

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments and Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the Bank A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their interest Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for trading The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. The Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest balances, A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the following Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank at Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit under The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial terms assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara • for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

The Bank's policies, processes and controls for trading activities are designed to achieve 

a balance between pursuing profitable trading opportunities and managing earnings 

volatility within a framework of sound and prudent practices. Trading activities are 

primarily customer focused, but also include a commercial execution component. 

 

Market risk arising from the Bank's trading activities is managed in accordance with 

Board-approved policies and limits, including aggregate VaR and stress testing limits. 

 

Trading portfolios are marked-to-market in accordance with the Bank's valuation 

policies. Positions are marked-to-market daily and valuations are independently 

reviewed by back office or Global Risk Management units on a regular basis. 

 

These units also provide profit and loss reporting, as well as VaR and limit compliance 

reporting to business unit management and executive management for evaluation and 

action as appropriate. VaR is calculated daily using a 99% confidence level, and a one-

day holding period. This means that, about once in every 100 days, the trading positions 

are expected to lose more than the VaR estimate. The Bank calculates general market 

risk and equity specific risk VaR using historical simulation based on 300 days of market 

data. For debt specific risk VaR, the Bank uses a combination of Monte Carlo and 

historical simulation.   

 

A summary of the VaR position of the Bank's trading portfolios at the reporting date is 

as follows: 
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35. Risk management (contd.)

(d) Operational Risk

(e) Capital Management

(Company No. 308035 U)

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara • for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, 

human behaviour and systems, or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in 

each of the Bank’s business and key support activities and can manifest itself in various 

ways. These include breakdowns, error, business interruptions and inappropriate 

behaviour of employees, and can potentially result in financial losses and other damage to 

the Group and the Bank.   

 

Operational risks are managed and controlled within the individual business lines and a 

wide variety of checks and balances to address operational risks have been developed as 

an important part of our risk management culture. They include established policies and 

procedures, internal controls and procedures as well as maintaining back-up procedures 

for key activities, undertaking contingency planning, regular organisational review and 

through enforcement of the Bank’s Guidelines for Business Conduct. These are supported 

by an independent review by Internal Audit.     

   

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 October The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be reduced to The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and of the These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal commercial assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank Negara • for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in 

The Bank's lead regulator, Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM") sets and monitors capital 

requirements for the Bank as a whole. With effect from 2008, the Bank is required to 

comply with the provisions of the Basel II framework in respect of regulatory capital. The 

Bank adopted the Standardised approach for Credit Risk and Market Risk and the Basic 

Indicator Approach for Operational Risk. Please refer to Note 33 of the financial 

statements for the Group and the Bank's regulatory capital position under Basel II as at 

the reporting date. 

The Group and the Bank's regulatory capital is analysed in two tiers: 

Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capital, share premium, retained 

earnings and statutory reserves. 

  

Tier 2 capital, which includes collective impairment provisions (excluding collective 

impairment provisions attributable to loans classified as impaired). 

• 

• 
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36. Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities not measured at fair value

Fair values

Recognised financial instruments

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

 Total fair 

values 

 Total 

carrying 

amount 

As at 31 Oct 2014 * RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Group and Bank

Financial assets

Financial investments 

available-for-sale -                 -                     1,754             1,754             1,754             

Loans and advances -                 -                     2,742,051      2,742,051      2,742,819      

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers -                 -                     1,074,174      1,074,174      1,074,196      

* 

(Company No. 308035 U)

The auditor's report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 The business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will In the Finance Act 2007, it was announced that the corporate income tax rate will be The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods Key management personnel comprises persons other than the Directors of the Group and These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Group The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are Loans and advances are carried at their outstanding unpaid principal and interest A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will Number of Directors of the Bank whose remuneration for the financial year fall in the Movements in temporary differences during the financial year are as follows: The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     Subsequent costs  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank Derivatives are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the Forward contracts are valued at the prevailing forward rates of exchange at the A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Group and of the Bank are A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading Subsidiaries Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any Subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Bank has sufficient tax credit The related party transactions are conducted at arm's length basis and on normal assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no Values assigned to collateral held for non-performing loans secured by properties is With effect from 1 January 2008, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank • IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  • • The Group and the Bank plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments Transactions eliminated on consolidation Dividends from securities available-for-sale are recognised when the right to receive the The credit exposures of the Group and the Bank to connected parties, as defined by Bank • for personal housing loans - mortgages over residential properties • for commercial personal loans - charges over the properties being financed • for other loans - charges over business assets such as premises, inventories, trade The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in The Bank Of Nova Scotia Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and 
In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, statutory 

deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia, other assets, bills and acceptances payable, amount owing to 

holding and related companies and other liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair values due to 

the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments. 

 

The estimated fair value of loans reflects changes in the general level of interest rates that have occured 

since the loans were originated. The particular valuation methods used are as follows: 

• For floating rate loans, potential adjustments for credit spread changes are not considered when 

estimating fair values. Therefore, the fair value is assumed to be equal to book value. 

• For all other loans, fair value is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows of these 

loans at market rates for loans with similar terms and risks. 

The estimated fair values of fixed rate deposits payable on a fixed date are determined by discounting the 

contractual cash flows, using market interest rates currently offered for deposits with similar terms and 

risks. 

The following tables sets out the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities and analyses 

them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised. 

Comparative figures have not been analysed by levels, by virtue of transitional provision given in 

Appendix C2 of MFRS13. 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

37. Derivative financial instruments

Nominal

value Assets Liabilities

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At 31 October 2014

Derivatives held-for-trading

Foreign exchange contracts 1,900,828      26,311           15,179           

Cross currency interest rate swaps 463,074         4,163             3,122             

Interest rate swaps 117,684         19                  8                    

2,481,586      30,493           18,309           

At 31 October 2013

Derivatives held-for-trading

Foreign exchange contracts 2,867,621      10,256           76,649           

Interest rate swaps 174,465         -                 1,026             

3,042,086      10,256           77,675           

Fair value

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised BNM/GP8 
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38. Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Derivatives

Group and Bank  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000  RM'000 

As at 31 Oct 2014

Derivative financial assets

Foreign exchange contracts 26,311                     -                           26,311                     (2,499)                      (2,527)                      21,285                     

Cross currency interest rate swaps 4,163                       -                           4,163                       (73)                           (1,504)                      2,586                       

Interest rate swaps 19                            -                           19                            -                           -                           19                            

30,493                     -                           30,493                     (2,572)                      (4,031)                      23,890                     

Derivative financial liabilities

Foreign exchange contracts 15,179                     -                           15,179                     (2,499)                      -                           12,680                     

Cross currency interest rate swaps 3,122                       -                           3,122                       (73)                           -                           3,049                       

Interest rate swaps 8                              -                           8                              -                           -                           8                              

18,309                     -                           18,309                     (2,572)                      -                           15,737                     

As at 31 Oct 2013

Derivative financial assets

Foreign exchange contracts 10,256                     -                           10,256                     (1,052)                      -                           9,204                       

10,256                     -                           10,256                     (1,052)                      -                           9,204                       

Derivative financial liabilities

Foreign exchange contracts 76,649                     -                           76,649                     (1,052)                      -                           75,597                     

Interest rate swaps 1,026                       -                           1,026                       -                           -                           1,026                       

77,675                     -                           77,675                     (1,052)                      -                           76,623                     

 Amount Presented 

in the Statement of 

Financial Position 

 Values of the 

Financial 

Instruments 

 

Net amount 

(Company No. 308035 U)

 Gross Amount 

Recognised as 

Financial Assets/ 

Liabilities 

 Gross Amount 

Offset in the 

Statement of 

Financial Position  

 Cash Collateral 

Received/ Pledged 

Amount Not Set-Off in the Statement of Financial Position 

The auditor'sThe business operations of the Group and Bank have not been affected by any significant There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of the There were no significant changes in estimates of amounts reported that have a material effect on There were no issuance and repayment of debt and equity securities during the half year ended No dividend was paid during the period. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure or There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group and the Bank for the half year Held-to-maturity investments are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed Available-for-sale securities are securities that are not classified as held-for-trading or held-to-In respect of cash and short-term funds, deposits and placements with financial institutions, statutory The estimated fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance The fair values are estimated based on quoted or observable market prices as at the balance sheet The fair value of the financial instruments listed above has been determined by discounting the The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM8.5 million for the third financial quarter ended 31 July Despite inflationary pressures and higher interest rates, the general economy appears to offer Specific allowance made for ageing non-performing loan from: The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared on the historical cost Income is recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income on housing and term loans is recognised Interest expense on deposits and borrowings of the Bank are recognised on an accrual basis. Loan arrangement fees and commissions which are material are recognised as income when all Leases, where the Group and the Bank do not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of the Loans and advances are stated at cost less any allowance for bad and doubtful debts. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term funds and deposits and placements with Securities are classified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the Securities are acquired and held for yield or capital growth or to meet minimum liquid assets Securities purchased under resale agreements are securities which the Group and the Bank had A subsidiary is a company in which the Bank controls the composition of its board of Directors or Recognition and measurement Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated The carrying amounts of assets except for deferred tax assets and financial assets (other than Other receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive cash or Deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions are Bills and acceptances payable represent the Group and the Bank’s own bills and acceptances Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group Foreign exchange positions on spot contracts are valued at the prevailing rates of exchange The Bank acts as an intermediary with counterparties who wish to swap their interest rate Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income statement Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in All income and expenditure arising from the operations of the subsidiaries have been taken up in the The Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the ultimate The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial Institutions The basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated based on the profit attributable to equity The recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities (before offsetting) are as follows:     The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of which are The guidelines and policies adopted by the Group and by the Bank to manage the following risks Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, human Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its Market risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, Foreign currency exchange risk refers to adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels of Liquidity refers to the ability to meet financial obligations and to fund the growth of assets. The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with This FRS sets out the new requirements for the recognition, derecognition and measurement of Securities are classified as held for trading if they were acquired principally for the purpose of Non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are Available-for-sale financial assets are assets not designated as held for trading or held-to-The holdings of the securities portfolio of the Group and of the Bank are recognised based on the A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover possible Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. assigning only fifty percent (50%) of the realisable value of the properties held as collateral for non-performing loans which are in arrears for more than seven (7) years, no value will be Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in the market rates or prices. The Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty may be unable to meet the terms of a During the financial year ended 31 October 2006, the Group and the Bank adopted the revised BNM/GP8 The portion for non-performing loans where no realisable value has been assigned will be written  
Values

• • • • 
for personal

• • 

The Bank enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA") master netting agreements. In general, under such agreements 

the amounts owed by each counterparty on a single day in respect of all transactions outstanding in the same currency are aggregated into a single net amount that is payable 

by one party to other. In certain circumstances e.g. when a credit event such as default occurs, all outstanding agreements are terminated, the termination value is assessed 

and only a single net amount is payable in settlement of all transactions. 

 

The ISDA agreements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This is because the Bank currently does not have any legally enforceable 

right to offset recognised amounts, because the right to offset is enforceable only on the occurrence of future events such as default or other credit events. 

 

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognised financial instruments that are subject to above agreements. 

• • • 

• • • 

• • • 



84

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO

SECTION 169 (15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

……………………………………………………………

LODEWIJK GOVAERTS

……………………………………………………………

MURUGIAH M N SINGHAM   

Kuala Lumpur

Date: 28 April 2015

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD

(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 18 to 83 are drawn up in 

accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and 

fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Bank as of 31 October 2014 and of their 

financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 

 

 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors: 
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STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 169 (16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

……………………………………………………………

LODEWIJK GOVAERTS

Before me:

(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA BERHAD

I, Lodewijk Govaerts, the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of The 

Bank of Nova Scotia Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set 

out on pages 18 to 83 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn 

declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the 

Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed in Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory on 

28 April 2015. 
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Report on the Financial Statements

(Company No. 308035 U)

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

We have audited the financial statements of The Bank of Nova Scotia Berhad, which comprise the 

statements of financial position as at 31 October 2014 of the Group and of the Bank, and the 

statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 

the Group and of the Bank for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 18 to 83. 

 

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and presentation of financial 

statements so as to give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting 

Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 

Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors 

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those 

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.   

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 

including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 

entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion. 

    

 

the matters required by Section 169 of the Companies Act, 1965 to be dealt with in the the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Companies Act, 1965 to be the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the the state of affairs of the Group and of the Bank at 31 October 2008 and the results of 

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members Of  

The Bank of Nova Scotia Berhad 
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(Company No. 308035 U)

a) 

b)

c)

KPMG Chin Shoon Chong

Firm Number: AF 0758 Approval Number: 2823/04/15 (J)

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Petaling Jaya, Malaysia

Date:  28 April 2015

The principal activities of the Bank are banking and related financial services, whilst theThe results of the Group and the Bank for the year are: There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the year except asNo dividend was paid during the year and the Directors do not recommend any dividend toBefore the financial statements of the Group and the Bank were made out, the Directors Before the financial statements of the Group and the Bank were made out, the Directors At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which haveAt the date of this report there does not exist: any charge on the assets of the Group and the Bank which has arisen since the end any contingent liabilities in respect of the Group and the Bank that has arisen since theNo contingent or other liability of the Group and the Bank has become enforceable, or is likelyAt the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and the Bank for theThe Bank Negara Malaysia guidelines require the setting up of three Board CommitteesSimilarly the Remuneration Committee’s functions are currently performed by BNS based onDuring financial year 2006, the Bank continued to perform well despite the pressures onThe Bank has not been rated by any external agencies. Directors who served since the date of the last report are: According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings maintained by the Bank in accordanceThe other Directors did not hold or deal in the shares of the Bank or its related corporations duringThere were no changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Bank during the financialNo options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Bank during the yearSince the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Bank has received or becomeThe Directors regard The Bank of Nova Scotia, a company incorporated in Canada, as the The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment. In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 10 to 41 are drawnI, Gulam Rasool Khan bin T.M. Abdul Hameed, the Director primarily responsible for the

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

Group and of the Bank as of 31 October 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for 

the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in 

Malaysia. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the 

following: 

In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be 

kept by the Bank and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act. 

Other Matters 

 

This report is made solely to the members of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 

of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose.  We do not assume 

responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 

We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the 

Bank’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of 

the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory 

information and explanations required by us for those purposes. 

Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any 

adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act. 
 


